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NOTICE

1

NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE NINETY-
EIGHTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
WALCHAND PEOPLEFIRST LIMITED WILL BE HELD
ON TUESDAY, 31ST JULY, 2018 AT 03:00 P.M. AT THE
KILACHAND CONFERENCE ROOM, INDIAN
MERCHANTS’ CHAMBER, IMC MARG, CHURCHGATE,
MUMBAI – 400 020 TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING
BUSINESS:
Ordinary Business:
1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement

of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March,
2018, the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon;

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjay Jha
(DIN: 00068519), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment;

3. To consider and if thought fit, to ratify the appointment
of M/s. K. S. Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company.

Special Business:
4. Appointment of Mr. Uday Phadke (DIN: 00030191) as an

Independent Director and in this regard to consider and
if thought fit, to pass the following resolution with or
without modification(s) as Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provision of Section 149,
152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force) and as per applicable
Regulations and Schedules of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the consent of the members
be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Uday
Phadke (DIN: 00030191) as the Independent Director of
the Company, who was on the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee appointed as
the Additional Independent Director by the Board of
Directors in their Meeting held on 02nd May, 2018 to hold
office till the date of the Annual General Meeting and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing from a member along with the deposit of the
requisite amount under section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013 proposing his candidature for the office of Director,
and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the
criteria for independence as provided in Section 149(6) of
the Act, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five)
consecutive years commencing from 31st July, 2018.”

By order of the Board

Pallavi Jha
Chairperson & Managing Director

DIN:-00068483
Address: 201, Sterling Heritage 39,

N.S. Patkar Marg, Gamdevi,
Mumbai – 400 007

Place: Mumbai
Date: 02nd May, 2018
Registered Office:
1, Construction House, 5, Walchand Hirachand Marg,
Ballard Estate, Mumbai - 400 001.

Notes:
1) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is

entitled to appoint a proxy to attend the meeting and the
proxy need not be a member of the Company. A proxy
shall not vote except on a poll. The instrument appointing
the proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement
of the meeting;

2) A person appointed as proxy shall act on behalf of such
member or number of members not exceeding fifty and
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the
total share capital of the company carrying voting rights.
A member holding more than ten percent of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint
a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as
a proxy for any other person or shareholder;

3) The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the
Company will be closed from 24th July, 2018 to 30th July,
2018, both days inclusive;

4) Members holding shares in dematerialized form are
requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank
details, National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS),
Electronic Clearing Service (ECS), mandates, nominations,
power of attorney, change of address, change of name, e-
mail address, contact  numbers, etc., to their Depository
Participant (DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then
be automatically reflected in the Company’s records which
will help the Company and the Company’s Registrars
and Transfer Agents, M/s. Computech Sharecap Limited
to provide efficient and better services. Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to intimate such
changes to M/s. Computech Sharecap Limited;

5) Members holding shares in physical form are requested
to consider converting their holding to dematerialized
form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares
and for ease of portfolio management. Members can contact
the Company or M/s. Computech Sharecap Limited for
assistance in this regard;

6) Members holding shares in physical form in identical
order of names in more than one folio are requested to
send to the Company or M/s. Computech Sharecap Limited,
the details of such folios together with the share certificates
for consolidating their holding in one folio. A consolidated
share certificate will be returned to such Members after
making requisite changes thereon;

7) In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member
whose name appears as the first holder in the order of
names as per the Register of Members of the Company
will be entitled to vote;

8) Transfer of Unclaimed/Unpaid amounts to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF): Pursuant to
sections 205A and 205C and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 and section 123 of
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Companies Act, 2013 all unclaimed/unpaid dividend,
application money, debenture interest and interest on
deposits as well as the principal amount of debentures
and deposits, as applicable, remaining unclaimed/unpaid
for a period of seven years from the date they became due
for payment, in relation to the Company have been
transferred to the IEPF established by the Central
Government. No claim shall lie against the IEPF or the
Company for the amounts so transferred prior to March
31, 2018, nor shall any payment be made in respect of
such claim;

9) In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder,
the Members are provided with the facility to cast their
vote electronically, through the e-voting services provided
by CDSL, on all resolutions set forth in this Notice;

10) Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and
their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of
Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or
arrangements in which directors are interested maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
its rule made thereunder will be available for inspection
by the members at the Annual General Meeting;

11) Members/Proxies should fill the attendance slip for
attending the meeting and bring their attendance slip
along with their copy of Annual Report to the meeting.
Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are
requested to write their Client ID and DP ID and those
who hold shares in physical form are requested to write
their Folio Number in the attendance slip for attending
the Meeting;

12) Corporate Members intending to send their authorized
representatives to attend the meeting are requested to
send to the Company a certified copy of the Board resolution
authorizing such a representative to attend and vote on
their behalf at the meeting;

13) All documents referred to in the notice are open for inspection
at the registered office of the Company between Business
hours on all working days up to the date of the Meeting;

14) Member are requested to address all correspondences,
including dividend matters, to the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents, M/s. Computech Sharecap Limited,
“Computech”, 147, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai
- 400 023,
Tel No: 022-22635000-001,
Fax No.: 022-22635005,
Email: helpdesk@computechsharecap.com

15) Members wishing to claim dividends, which remain unclaimed,
are requested to correspond with Mr. Vivek Wadhavkar,
Compliance Officer, at the Company’s registered office.
Members are requested to note that dividend not enchased
or claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to
the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, will, be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
as per Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013;

16) The following are the details of dividend paid by the
Company and its respective due date of transfer of such
fund to the Central Government, which remain unpaid:

Sr. Date of Dividend for Due date of transfer
No Declaration the year to the government
1 July 26, 2012 Final Dividend August 25, 2019

2011-12
2 July 30, 2013 Final Dividend August 29, 2020

2012-13
3 July, 31, 2015 Final Dividend August 30, 2022

2014-15
4 July , 28, 2016 Final Dividend August 27, 2023

2015-16

It may be noted that the claimant of the shares transferred
above shall be entitled to claim the transfer of shares
from Investor Education & Protection Fund in accordance
with the procedure and submission of such documents as
may be prescribed. In view of the above, those Shareholders
who have not enchased their dividend warrants are advised
to send all the unclaimed dividend warrants to the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents or to the Registered
Office of the Company for revalidation and encash them
before the due date for transfer to the Central Government.

17) Particulars of the dividend transferred to the General
Revenue Account of the Central Government i.e. Investor
Education & Protection Fund during the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2018 pursuant to Companies Unpaid
Dividend (Transfer to General Revenue Account of the
Central Government) Rules, 1978:

Sr. Date of Dividend for the Amount Date of
No. Declaration of Financial Year transferred to Transfer

Dividend Investor to Investor
Education & Education &
Protection Protection
Fund (Rs.) Fund

1 Nil Nil Nil Nil

18) As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the rules made thereunder facility for making nominations
is available for shareholders, in respect of the shares held
by them. Nomination forms can be obtained from the
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company;

19) Members seeking any information or clarifications on the
Annual Report are requested to send in written, queries
to the Company at least one week before the meeting to
enable the Company to compile the information and
provide replies at the meeting;

20) The requirements of the Regulation 36 of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pertaining
to the profile of the director to be re-appointed is enclosed
as Annexure I;

21) E- voting:
In compliance with section 108 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being
in force) the Company is pleased to provide its Shareholders
with facility to exercise their right to vote at the 98th

Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and
the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services
provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL).
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The Company has signed an agreement with CDSL for
facilitating e-voting to enable the shareholders to cast
their vote electronically.

Process for E -Voting -
The procedure and instructions for e-voting are as follows:
(i) The voting period begins from 09:00 A.M. on Saturday,

28th July, 2018 and ends on Monday, 30th July, 2018 at
05:00 P.M. During this period  shareholders’ of the Company,
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized
form, as on the cut-off date of Tuesday, 24th July, 2018
may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website
www.evotingindia.com.

(iii) Click on Shareholders / Members.
(iv) Now Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits

Client ID,
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should

enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click

on Login.
(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged

on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting
of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vii)If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form
and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by
Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
• Members who have not updated their PAN

with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the first two letters of their
name and the 8 digits of the sequence number
in the PAN field.

• In case the sequence number is less than 8
digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before
the number after the first two characters of
the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name
is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1
then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth
Bank (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat
Details account or in the Company records in order to login.
OR • If both the details are not recorded with the
Date of depository or Company please enter the
Birth member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank
(DOB) details field as mentioned in instruction (iv).

(viii)After entering these details appropriately, click on
“SUBMIT” tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly
reach the Company selection screen. However, members
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily
enter their login password in the new password field.
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the
demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company

on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company
opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly
recommended not to share your password with any other
person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details
can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained
in this Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on
which you choose to vote.

(xii)On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION”
and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting.
Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO
implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiii)Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish
to view the entire Resolution details.

(xiv)After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote
on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed.
If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to
change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly
modify your vote.

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you
will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvi)You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on
“Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xvii)If a demat account holder has forgotten the changed login
password then Enter the User ID and the image verification
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as
prompted by the system.

(xviii)Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s
mobile app m-Voting available for android based
mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from
Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users
can download the app from the App Store and the
Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the
instructions as prompted by the mobile app while
voting on your mobile.

(xix)Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians:
• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals,

HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as
Corporates.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the
stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User
should be created using the admin login and password.
The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s)
for which they wish to vote on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of
the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format
in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting,
you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”)
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com,
under help section or write an email to
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helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
In case of members receiving the physical copy:
22) Please follow all steps from Sr. no. (i) to (xx) above to caste

vote.
23) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting,

you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”)
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.co.in
under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com;

24) Mr. Pramod S. Shah, Practicing Company Secretaries
(ICSI Membership No. FCS- 334) has been appointed as
the scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair
and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall within a
period not exceeding 3 (three) working days from the
conclusion of the e-voting period unblock the votes in the
presence of at least 2 (two) witness not in the employment
of the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s report of the
votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the
Chairperson of the Company;

25) The results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the
Company. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s
report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.walchandpeoplefirst.com and on the website of
CDSL immediately after the result is declared by the
Chairperson.

By order of the Board

Pallavi Jha
Chairperson & Managing Director

DIN:-00068483
Address: 201, Sterling Heritage 39,

N S Patkar Marg, Gamdevi,
Mumbai- 400007

Place: Mumbai
Date: 02nd May, 2018
Registered Office:
1, Construction House, 5, Walchand Hirachand Marg,
Ballard Estate, Mumbai - 400 001

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies, Act, 2013:
Item No. 4:
Mr. Uday Phadke (DIN: 00030191), was appointed as an
Additional Independent Director by the Board on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee in their Meeting held on 02nd May, 2018 with
immediate effect. In accordance with provision of section 161
of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable Regulations and
Schedules of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015
to hold office upto the date of the Annual General Meeting of
the Company.
Mr. Uday Phadke is not disqualified from being appointed as
Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given his
consent to act as Director.
The Company has received notice in writing from member
along with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160
of the Act proposing the candidature of Mr. Uday Phadke for
the office of Director of the Company.
The Company has also received declarations from Mr. Uday

Phadke that he meets with criteria of independence as
prescribed both under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the
Act.
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Uday Phadke fulfills the
conditions required to be fulfilled for being appointed as an
Independent Director as per the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In view of the above, the
members are requested to appoint Mr. Uday Phadke as an
Independent Director of the Company.
Brief resume:
Mr. Uday Phadke, 67 years, holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Commerce and Law from Mumbai University.
He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
Mr. Phadke had been with Mahindra & Mahindra (M&M)
since 1973. He was President - Finance, Legal & Financial
services sector and a member of the Group Executive Board
at M&M & thereafter “Principal Advisor-Finance” at M&M.
He retired on 31st August 2015.
He was a Director on the Board of certain companies in the
Mahindra Group such as Mahindra & Mahindra Financial
Services Limited, Mahindra Holidays & Resorts India Ltd.,
Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited, Mahindra World
City Developers Limited, etc. He was also on Audit Committee
of these companies.
He has received CFO awards from various organizations for
excellence in different areas of financial management
including award as Best CFO in the manufacturing sector
from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
He was a member of the SEBI Committee on Disclosures and
Accounting Standards. He has been Chairman of the Direct
Taxes Committee of the Bombay Chamber of Commerce and
Industry and was on the Accounting Standards Board of the
ICAI, as a nominee of CII. He has also been a member of the
National Advisory Committee of Accounting Standards
constituted under the Companies Act, as a nominee of CII.
He is currently an Independent Director on the Board of IDFC
AMC Trustee Company & on the Board of Kotak Infrastructure
Debt Fund Limited. He is also a Governing Council member
of Banking Codes & Standards Board of India.

ANNEXURE 1
DISCLOSURES REGARDING APPOINTMENT OR RE-
APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AS REQUIRED
UNDER REGULATION 36 OF SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015:
1. Mr. Sanjay Jha
Whole Time Director
Walchand PeopleFirst Limited
Sanjay Jha is the Executive Director of the Dale Carnegie
Training operations in India, which has a global experience of
having worked with over 400 of the Top Fortune 500
companies. In India, Dale Carnegie has worked with over 8000
corporate firms, multinational companies, public sector,
government and NGOs and trained more than 3,10,000 Dale
Carnegie graduates in the last 15 years. His area of
professional interest and management science specialization
includes leadership development, change management,
corporate culture and ethics, business strategy and emotional
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intelligence. Sanjay is a Motivational speaker, an Executive
Coach and Mentor who has advised top management,
including CEO’s as well as senior political leaders. Jha is
also the National Spokesperson of the Indian National
Congress Party since 2013 and represents his political party
in TV debates and panel discussions. He is the President of
All India Professionals Congress, Maharashtra.
Sanjay has often received an overwhelming feedback and
recognition for his high-quality training and leadership talk.
He is one of the senior leaders in the worldwide Dale Carnegie
Training network, and has addressed global audiences in New
York, Washington, Los Angeles, Chicago, Singapore, Bermuda,
Taiwan, Mexico and Toronto. Jha has addressed managers
and leaders at ICICI Pru, TEDx, IBM, Axis Bank, Goldman
Sachs, Microsoft, Oracle, British Gas, Brookings, The Doon
School, Toastmaster, St. Xavier’s College, Dainik Bhaskar,
Crompton Greaves, Pricewaterhouse Coopers, Bajaj
Electricals, SHRM, United Nations Young Achiever ’s
Conclave, SRCC, IIT, Standard Chartered, Tata Motors, CII,
IMC, Venture Capital Association, NHRD, Apple, Bharat
Petroleum, Citibank, Mahindra & Mahindra etc. He has
conducted several corporate programs focused on executive
development, advised companies on corporate image
management, done executive coaching and consulted with
companies. He has also addressed business schools, industry
conferences and knowledge symposiums, and has also been
engaged frequently as a strategic consultant/ advisor on
training to a leading political party.
He has made several contributions to mainline news and
business dailies and magazines such as Business Standard,
Indian Express, Financial Express, Hindustan Times, Mid-
Day, Tehelka, Rediff.com and The Huffington Post, and
appears regularly to air his views on print and electronic
media. He is one of India’s top influencers on social media
like Twitter.
He has founded one of the world’s leading internet portals
called CricketNext.Com which was ranked once amongst Alexa
Top 1000 sites globally, and is now part of the Network 18
media Group.
Prior to starting Dale Carnegie, Sanjay was instrumental in
setting up the private sector mutual fund industry in India,
having worked as a Senior Vice President with ITC
Threadneedle Asset Management ( part of BAT plc, UK) and
as a Vice President , Alliance Capital ( New York, USA). His
career in banking included stints with both Bank of America
and ANZ Grindlays Bank where he worked in NRI marketing
and operation services, product-technology training, retail
banking and branch management. He started his career in
sales with Bharat Petroleum.
Jha completed his MBA from XLRI, Jamshedpur and his
Master’s in Economics from Gokhale Institute of Politics and
Economics, University of Pune. He graduated with distinction
in Economics from Fergusson College, Pune.
Sanjay has also written a cricket anthology titled 11-
Triumphs, Trials and Turbulence in Indian cricket, two cricket
quiz books and published his first collection of poems. Jha
has recently authored a book on leadership called The

Superstar Syndrome (The Making Of A Champion), co-
authored with Dr. Myra White, who is a Professor at the
Harvard Medical School. This book was launched in August
2013 and featured in the Crossword Bestseller list.

2. Mr. Uday Phadke
Independent Director
Walchand PeopleFirst Limited
a. Brief profile
Mr. Uday Phadke, 67 years, holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Commerce and Law from Mumbai University.
He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
Mr. Phadke had been with Mahindra & Mahindra (M&M)
since 1973. He was President –Finance, legal & financial
services sector and a member of the Group Executive Board
at M&M & thereafter “Principal Advisor-Finance” at M&M.
He retired on 31st August 2015.
He was a Director on the Board of certain companies in the
Mahindra Group such as Mahindra & Mahindra Financial
Services Limited, Mahindra Holidays & Resorts India Ltd.,
Mahindra Lifespace Developers Limited, Mahindra World
City Developers Limited, etc. He was also on Audit Committee
of these companies.
He has received CFO awards from various organizations for
excellence in different areas of financial management
including award as Best CFO in the manufacturing sector
from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
He was a member of the SEBI Committee on Disclosures
and Accounting Standards. He has been Chairman of the
Direct Taxes Committee of the Bombay Chamber of
Commerce and Industry and was on the Accounting
Standards Board of the ICAI, as a nominee of CII. He has
also been a member of the National Advisory Committee of
Accounting Standards constituted under the Companies Act,
as a nominee of CII.
He is currently an independent director on the board of IDFC
AMC Trustee Company & on the Board of Kotak
Infrastructure Debt Fund Limited. He is also a Governing
Council member of Banking Codes & Standards Board of
India.
b. Disclosure of relationship between directors inter-se -
There is no relationship between Mr. Uday Phadke and any
of the Director of the Company.
c. Name of listed Company in which Mr. Uday Phadke holds
directorship and membership of the Committees of the board:
Name of listed entities (other than Company) in which director
holds directorship - NIL
Name of listed entities (other than Company) in which director
holds Chairpersonship in Committee - NIL
Name of listed entities (other than Company) in which
director holds membership in Committee - NIL
d. Shareholding in the Company- Mr. Uday Phadke does
not hold any shares in the Company.
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To,

The Members
Walchand PeopleFirst Limited

The Directors are pleased to present the 98th Annual Report
along with the Audited Financial Statements of your Company
for the Financial Year ended  31st March, 2018.

The State of the Company’s Affairs

1. KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended

 31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017
(INR. in lakhs) (INR. in lakhs)

Profit before interest,
depreciation and taxation 331.79 180.84
Less: Interest (2.51) (2.17)
Less: Depreciation /Amortisation (46.39) (49.14)
Less: Provision for Taxation
- Current / earlier years (84.76) (54.57)
Add/(Less): Deferred Tax recognized 13.30 18.27
Net Profit 211.44 93.23
Add/(Less) : Other Comprehensive
Income (Net of tax) (1.23) (11.58)
Add: Balance brought forward 816.85 778.87
Amount available for
appropriation 1,027.03 860.54
Less : Proposed Final Dividend - (36.30)
Less : Dividend Tax - (7.39)
Balance carried
to Balance Sheet 1,027.03 816.85

During the year under review, the Company has reported
a total income of INR. 2,816.50 lakhs out of which non-
operating income amounts to INR 135.14 lakhs. Income
from operations is INR 2,681.36 lakhs which has increased
by INR 357.33 lakhs i.e. by 15% as compared to the
previous year.

2. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There is no change in the nature of Business by the
Company during the period under review.

3. DIVIDEND:
Your Directors have decided not to recommend any
dividend for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
The Company has proposed to transfer Nil amount to the
General Reserve out of amount available for appropriations.

5. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
(A) Conservation of energy -

Sub-rule 3(A) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014 pertaining to the Conservation of energy
is not applicable to the Company.

(B) Technology Absorption -
Sub-rule 3(B) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 pertaining to the Technology Absorption
is not applicable to the Company.

(C) Foreign exchange Earnings and Outgo-
The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows
and the Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of actual
outflows is as follows:

A. Expenditure In Financial  Year Financial Year
Foreign Currency ended ended

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(INR in Lakhs) (INR in Lakhs)

Royalty Remitted 191.34 223.81
Others 4.88 11.98

B. Earnings in
Foreign currency
Professional fees 45.94 8.28
Others 8.31 6.46

6. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
Economic Trends:
After conceding its position as the fastest growing major
economy to China for a year in 2017, India is likely to
reclaim the position in 2018, with growth expected to
accelerate to 7.3% in the year, according to the World
Bank’s Global Economic Prospects.
The report projected China’s economic growth to slow to
6.4% in 2018 from 6.8% in 2017. The World Bank also
revised India’s growth estimate for 2017 to 6.7% from 7%
projected in October, blaming short-term disruptions
caused by the newly introduced goods and services tax
(GST) and a softer-than-envisioned recovery in private
investment.
The global economy, meanwhile, is experiencing a broad-
based cyclical upturn, which is expected to be sustained
over the next couple of years, although downside risks
persist. The anti-globalization push and the China-USA
tariff war may spill over and have negative effects that
may dampen world output. The economy has been hurt by
the negative repercussions of demonetization and
disruptions caused by GST.
Direct tax collections were buoyant and grew by more than
18% in the first nine months (April-December) of the fiscal
year 2017-18 to two-thirds of the full-year target, which
is expected to provide a breather to the government as it
struggles to contain the fiscal deficit. Rising oil prices
could, however prove to be a strong headwind that might
upset fiscal deficit calculations.
The World Bank also said that strong private consumption
and services are expected to continue to support economic
activity. “Private investment is expected to revive as the
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corporate sector adjusts to the GST; infrastructure spending
increases, partly to improve public services and internet
connectivity; and private sector balance sheet weaknesses
are mitigated with the help of the efforts of the government
and the Reserve Bank of India”. Over the medium term,
GST is expected to benefit economic activity and fiscal
sustainability by reducing the cost of complying with
multiple state tax systems, drawing informal activity into
the formal sector, and expanding the tax base. The recent
recapitalization package for public sector banks announced
by the government of India is expected to help resolve
banking sector balance sheets, support credit to the private
sector, and lift investment. The global trade recovery is
expected to lift exports. However, bureaucratic delays,
rising unemployment, low gross fixed capital formation,
and a series of bank scandals and rising Non-Performing
Assets could seriously impact India’s growth trajectory.
India’s agrarian crisis seems to be worsening, as evidenced
in the farmer protests that are becoming a pan-Indian
phenomenon. Mere loan waivers is hardly the panacea
for serious structural reforms. Short-term solutions are
mere temporary buffers for the rural economy which is being
left behind in the Indian growth story. The consequences
could leave India vulnerable to increasing income inequalities.
Corporate debt liabilities and distressed assets of public
sector banks, in particular, are deleterious in nature, and
cause lending to diminish. Ultimately, this will impact
the need for private capital. Infrastructure spending needs
both public-private partnership, but this domestic bottleneck
could dampen any emerging green-shoots in the economy.

Opportunities and Challenges
There is a direct correlation between private investment,
economic growth and training expenditures. The fact that
the Indian economy has at core experienced only modest
GDP growth has meant that the soft-skills industry has
not received a macroeconomic push. It has, however,
benefited from sectoral buoyancy. Banking and Financial
Services industry, particularly, in the light of corruption
scandals and violations of prudential norms, will need to
invest substantially in human resources, both the front-
line and leadership personnel.
E-commerce continues to receive high private equity funding
given the booming retail market in India, rising middle-
class spending, increasing securitized transactions on the
internet and escalating smartphone usage resulting in
an App-based e-tailing.
We expect infrastructure-related sectors like cement, steel,
construction etc. to be critical foundations for a sustainable
boom. Albeit the real estate sector has been bearish, low-
cost housing could provide the rural economy and mid-
sized districts with the necessary boost that could result
in a force multiplier.
For the training industry to experience sizeable traction,
it is imperative that the education industry flourishes.
Although the statistical size is humongous which is a
manifestation of its enormous potential, there are

crippling challenges that need to be overcome. India holds
a critical spot in the global education industry. The country
has more than 1.5 million schools with over 260 million
students enrolled and about 751 universities and 35,539
colleges. India has one of the largest higher education
systems in the world. Around 35.7 million students were
enrolled in higher education in India during 2016-17. A
recent report states that India has become the second
largest market for e-learning after the US. The sector is
currently pegged at US$ 2 billion and is expected to reach
US$ 5.7 billion by 2020.
The education sector in India is poised to witness major
growth in the years to come as India will have world’s
largest tertiary-age population and second largest graduate
talent pipeline globally by the end of 2020. The education
market in India is currently valued at US$ 100 billion
and is expected to nearly double to US$ 180 billion by
2020. Currently, the school segment is valued at US$ 52
billion and contributes 52 per cent to the education market
in India, higher education contributes 15 per cent of the
market size, text-book, e-learning and allied services
contribute 28 per cent and vocational education in
manufacturing and services contributes 5 per cent. Higher
education system in India has undergone rapid expansion.
Currently, India’s higher education system is the largest
in the world enrolling over 70 million students while in
less than two decades, India has managed to create
additional capacity for over 40 million students. It witnesses
spending of over Rs. 46,200 crore (US$ 6.93 billion).
The government of India has ambitious plans to transform
India into a competitive, high growth, middle-income
economy. These ambitious plans are highly dependent on
the availability of jobs and the quality of the labor force.
More than 12 million youth between 19 and 25 years of
age are expected to enter India’s labor force every year for
the next two decades. The government’s recent skill gap
analysis concludes that by 2022, another 109 million or
so skilled workers will be needed in the 24 keys sectors of
the economy. To address the issue, skill development has
emerged as a priority sector. Public-private partnerships
in preparing the curriculum for training packages is
encouraged. The program also seeks to set up a Corporate
Social Responsibility Skills Fund to use the private sector
CSR funds for skill development activities. Your Company’s
India Futures division has established active partnerships
with multiple Sector Skills Councils to participated
significantly in this endeavour.

Outlook, Risks and Control
Overall, the outlook on India continues to be optimistic,
given the untapped potential of its human capabilities,
innovation, entrepreneurship and growth opportunities.
Undoubtedly, modern technology which is rapidly
transforming businesses will impact jobs and thus the
training industry. Artificial Intelligence, drones, robotics,
Big Data, 3D printing etc. are making capital-intensive
sectors replace human beings with new machines. It could
also lead to a long-term surge in new hires but they will
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require a different academic and experience curve for
adaptation to emerging methods untried before. Research
and Development in technology, pharmaceuticals etc.
could be areas we could focus on more.
We also are bullish on the government-backed Skills Mission
although the pronouncements have not matched the
performance. India is headed for being the single largest
provider of global talent, with one in four graduates in the
world being a product of the Indian higher education system.
What we need to ensure is high quality talent, not merely
holders of degree certificates.
We need to be circumspect, however, given the fact that
we live in an interconnected world economy. Oil prices,
tariff wars, rising inflation, job crisis, low exports,
languishing private capital formation and a myopic vision
for the future could also result in a staggering slowdown
if we do not demonstrate adaptability. Clearly, there is a
long way to go.
Notwithstanding, the learning and development industry
should see a stable to strong growth, given its sunrise
growth phase and the fact that it is sector-agnostic. We
are confident that it mitigates any serious risk to our
future business in the medium-term.

Cautionary Statement
Your Company endeavors to perform and attempt to deliver
the best at all times. However, the statements made in this
report describing the Company’s objectives, expectations
or predictions shall be read in conjunction with the
government policies as issued and amended from time to
time, the micro as well as macroeconomic scenario
prevailing at that time, global developments and such
other incidental factors that may extend beyond the control
of the Company and Management. Keeping this in view,
the actual results may materially vary from those expressed
in the statement.

Internal Control Systems
Your Company ensures that appropriate risk management
limits, control mechanisms and mitigation strategies are
in place through its efficient and effective Internal Control
System and the same completely corresponds to its size,
scale and complexity of operations. The Company strives
to put several checks and balances in place to ensure that
confidentiality is maintained. Effective procedures and
mechanisms are rolled out by a full-fledge Internal Audit
System to ensure that the interest of the Company is
safeguarded at all times. In addition to this, the Risk
Assessment policy of the organization is reviewed on a
quarterly basis by the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors
of your Company.

Financial Performance
Total income achieved during the year under review is
INR 2,816.50 lakhs as against INR 2,496.75 lakhs in the
previous year. Income from operations of the Company
has been INR 2,681.36 lakhs against INR 2,324.03 lakhs
in the previous year, showing an increase of 15%. After

providing for taxation of INR 84.76 lakhs and deferred
tax asset of INR 13.30 lakhs, the net profit of the Company
is INR 211.44 lakhs as against the profit after tax of INR
93.23 lakhs in the previous year. Operating Profit (Income
from operations less direct expenses) of the Company for
the current year is INR 585.39 lakhs as compared to INR
394.46 lakhs in the previous year, and hence has increased
by 48% compared to the previous year, Total EBITDA is
12% on total income as compared to 7% in last year. Total
PAT is 8% as compared to 4% in last year.

Human Resources
While growth and success are the prime motto of your
Company, at the same time it also realizes the importance
of its human capital. Continuous efforts are made to enhance
manpower productivity through its comprehensive
compensation and benefits plans for all its employees. In
order to develop a healthy environment within the
organization, we have a strong Performance Management
System which ensures fairness and growth of all individuals.
Our culture reflects our core values which reinforce respect
and dignity for each individual and show work ethics for
all employees. An average eight days of training per year
for each employee is directed at enriching leadership,
behavioral, functional and technical skills as well as
bringing about a change in the attitude, knowledge and
skill of employees. Thus, through this process of learning
and concurrent rewarding, your Company aims to equip
its employees with essential skills and competencies that
would enable them to step the ladder of success.

7. REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF THE
COMPANY/ THE REPORT OF THE BOARD:
The Financial Statement of the Company/ Board Report
has not been revised during the financial year 2017-18 as
per Section 131 of the Companies Act, 2013.

8. ANNUAL RETURN:
The extract of Annual Return pursuant to Section 92 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (subject
to amendment and re-enactment from time to time) in
the prescribed Form MGT-9 is hereby attached with this
Report in Annexure I and is a part of this Report. The
same is as on 31st March, 2018.

9. FIXED DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted any deposits within the
meaning of Section 73(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules made thereunder.

10. THE DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
The Company has adequate internal financial controls
beside timely statutory audit, limited reviews and internal
audits taking place periodically.

11. BOARD MEETINGS:
The Board of Directors (herein after called as “the Board”)
met for four times during the Year under review:
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Sr. Date of Venue and Directors Directors to
No. Meetings time of the present whom Leave

meeting of absence
was granted

1. 21/04/2017 1, Construction 1. Ms. Pallavi Jha None
House, Walchand 2. Mr. Sanjay Jha
Hirachand Marg, 3. Mr.M.N.Bhagwat
Ballard Estate, 4. Mr. V. K. Verma
Mumbai-400 001 5. Dr. Vijay N Gupchup
Time: 05:15 P.M 6. Mr. Rajeev Dubey

2. 31/07/2017 1, Construction 1. Ms. Pallavi Jha Ms. Shinjini
House, Walchand 2. Mr. Sanjay Jha Kumar
Hirachand Marg, 3. Mr.M.N.Bhagwat
Ballard Estate, 4. Mr. V. K. Verma
Mumbai-400 001 5. Dr. Vijay N Gupchup
Time: 01:00 P.M 6. Mr. Rajeev Dubey

3. 06/11/2017 1, Construction 1. Ms. Pallavi Jha Mr. Rajeev
House, Walchand 2. Mr. Sanjay Jha Dubey
Hirachand Marg, 3. Mr.M.N.Bhagwat
Ballard Estate, 4. Mr. V. K. Verma
Mumbai-400 001 5. Dr. Vijay N Gupchup
Time: 04:30 P.M

4. 30/01/2018 1, Construction 1. Ms. Pallavi Jha Mr. Rajeev
House, Walchand 2. Mr. Sanjay Jha Dubey
Hirachand Marg, 3. Mr.M.N.Bhagwat
Ballard Estate, 4. Mr. V. K. Verma
Mumbai-400 001 5. Dr. Vijay N Gupchup
Time: 04:45 P.M

12. CHANGE IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL:
Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel are
as follows:

Sr. Name of the Particulars Date of
No. Director Appointment/

Resignation
1 Ms. Shinjini Kumar Appointment as 21.04.2017

an Additional
Independent
Director

2 Ms. Shinjini Kumar Regularization 31.07.2017
as an
Independent
Director

3 Ms. Shinjini Kumar Resignation as 23.08.2017
an Independent
Director

Mr. Sanjay Jha retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting.

13. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY THE
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION
149(6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
Pursuant to Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013

read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (subject to amendment and re-
enactment from time to time), the Central Government
has prescribed that your Company shall have minimum
two Independent Directors on its Board.
In view of the above provisions, your Company has
following Independent Directors:

Sr. Name of the Date of Date of passing
No. Independent Director appointment/ of special

Reappointment resolution(if any)
1. Mr. M.N. Bhagwat 30/07/2014 30/07/2014
2. Mr. V. K. Verma 30/07/2014 30/07/2014
3. Dr. Vijay N. Gupchup 30/07/2014 30/07/2014
4. Mr. Rajeev Dubey 30/07/2014 30/07/2014

All the above Independent Directors meet the criteria of
‘independence’ prescribed under section 149(6) and have
submitted declaration to the effect that they meet with
the criteria of ‘independence’ as required under section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013.

14. COMMITTEES OF BOARD:
I. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules, the Company
has appropriate Nomination and Remuneration
Committee consisting of three Non-executive Directors,
all the Directors being Independent Directors. The
Committee acts in accordance with the ‘Terms of
Reference’ approved and adopted by the Board from
time to time.

The Composition of the Committee is as under:

Sr. No. Name of the Member Designation
1 Mr. V. K. Verma Chairman
2 Mr. Rajeev Dubey Member
3 Mr. M. N. Bhagwat Member

Remuneration Policy
Introduction:
The Company considers human resources as its invaluable
asset. This policy on Nomination and Remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other
employees has been formulated in terms of the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules and the
Securities And Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 inorder
to pay equitable remuneration to the Directors, KMPs
and employees of the Company and to harmonies the
aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals
of the Company.
Objective and purpose of the policy:

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
competencies, positive attributes and independence
for appointment of Directors (Executive and Non-
Executive) and recommend to the Board policies
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relating to the remuneration of the Directors, KMP
and other employees;
To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance
of all the Independent Director and Directors on the
Board;
To devise a policy on Board diversity;
To lay out remuneration principles for employees linked
to their effort, performance and achievement relating
to the Company’s goals and support the organization’s
business strategy, operating objectives and human
capital needs.

Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
The Board has constituted the Remuneration Committee
on April 29, 2004. The nomenclature of the said Committee
was changed to “Nomination and Remuneration Committee”
on 17th April, 2014. This is in line with the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board has the authority
to reconstitute the Committee from time to time.
Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee:
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is the sub
- committee of the Board of Directors of the Company and
the terms of reference of the Committee shall be decided
by the Board from time to time. The roles and responsibilities
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
be as follows:
1. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,

positive attributes and independence of a Director
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees;

2. To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors
and who may be appointed in senior management
and recommend to the Board their appointment and
removal and shall carry out evaluation of every Director’s
performance;

3. To determine such policy, taking into account all factors
which it deems necessary. The objective of such policy
shall be to ensure that members of the executive
management of the Company are provided with
appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and responsible manner,
rewarded for their individual contributions to the
success of the Company;

4. To review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance
of the remuneration policy;

5. To approve the design of any performance related pay
schemes operated by the Company and approve the
total annual payments made under such schemes;

6. To decide on all share incentive plans for approval by
the Board and shareholders. For any such plans,
determine each year whether awards will be made,
and if so, the overall amount of such awards, the
individual awards to the Executive Directors and other
senior executives and the performance targets to be used;

7. To consider and make recommendations in respect of
any other terms of the service contracts of the executives
and any proposed changes to these contracts, and to
review the Company’s standard form contract for
Executive Directors from time to time;

8. To consider any other matters relating to the
remuneration of or terms of employment applicable
to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees.

Appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
The Committee shall formulate the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director and KMP and recommending candidates to the
Board, when circumstances warrant the appointment of
a new Director and KMP, having regard to the experience
and expertise as may be deemed appropriate by the
Committee at the time of such recommendation.
Term of appointment of Directors:
a) Managing Director/ Whole-time Director/Manager:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person
as its Managing Director, Whole- time Director or
Manager for a term not exceeding five years at a time.
No re- appointment shall be made earlier than one
year before the expiry of term.

b) Independent Directors:
An Independent Director shall hold office for a term
up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company
and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of
a special resolution by the Company and disclosure
of such appointment in the Board’s Report. No
Independent Director shall hold office for more than
two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director
shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three
years of ceasing to become an Independent Director.
Provided that an Independent Director shall not,
during the said period of three years, be appointed in
or be associated with the Company in any other
capacity, either directly or indirectly. At the time of
appointment of Independent Director, it should be
ensured that number of Boards on which such person
serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an
Independent Director; and in case such person is
serving as a Whole-time Director in any listed
company the number of boards on which such person
serves as Independent Director is restricted to three
listed companies.

Removal:
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the
Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder including
any amendments made thereon and any other applicable
acts, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend,
to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of
a Director or KMP subject to the provisions and compliance
of the said Act, Rules and Regulations.
Retirement:
The Directors and KMP shall retire as per the applicable
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provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing
policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion
to retain the Directors and KMP after attaining the
retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.
Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors:
The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive
remuneration by way of sitting fees as detailed hereunder:
Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive sitting
fees for each meeting of the Board or Committee of the
Board attended by him of such sum as may be approved
by the Board of Directors within the overall limits prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies
Managerial Remuneration Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification or re-enactments thereof from time
to time).
Remuneration of Managing Director, CEO and Executive
Director:
i. The remuneration/commission to the Managing Director,

CEO and Executive Director will be determined by
the Committee and recommended to the Board for
approval.

ii. The remuneration, commission and increments to be
paid to the Managing Director, CEO and Executive
Director shall be in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there
under.

iii. At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the
Managing Director, CEO and Executive Director shall
be paid such remuneration as may be mutually agreed
between the Company (which includes the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors)
and the CEO & Managing Director and Executive
Director within the overall limits prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

iv. The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of
the Members of the Company in General Meeting, as
applicable.

v. The remuneration of the Managing Director, CEO and
Executive Director is broadly divided into fixed and
variable components. The fixed compensation shall
comprise of salary, allowances, perquisites, amenities
and retiral benefits. The variable component shall
comprise of performance bonus/commission.

vi. In determining the remuneration (including the fixed
increment and performance bonus/commission) the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall consider
the following:
a) The relationship of remuneration and performance

benchmarks is clear;
b) Balance between fixed and variable pay reflecting

short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the company and
its goals;

c) Responsibility required to be shouldered by the
Managing Director, CEO and Executive Director
and the industry benchmarks and the current

trends;
vii. The Company’s performance vis-à-vis the annual

budget achievement and individual performance vis-
à-vis the KRAs / KPIs.

Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel and other
employees:
i. In determining the remuneration of the KMPs and

other employees, the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee shall consider the following:
a) The relationship of remuneration and performance

benchmark is clear;
b) Balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting

short and long-term performance objectives
appropriate to the working of the Company and
its goals;

c) The remuneration is divided into two components
viz. fixed component of salaries, perquisites and
retirement benefits and variable component of
performance based incentive;

d) The remuneration including annual increment
and performance incentive is decided based on
the criticality of the roles and responsibilities,
the Company’s performance vis-à-vis the annual
budget achievement, individuals performance
vis-à-vis KRAs / KPIs, industry benchmark and
current compensation trends in the market;

ii. The Managing Director & CEO will carry out the
individual performance review of the KMPs, based on
the standard appraisal matrix and after taking into
account the appraisal score card and other factors
mentioned hereinabove and decide on the annual
increment and performance incentive. The overall
policy for such calculations will be explained to the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee for its
review and approval.

iii. Such performance reviews will be carried out by the
KMPs for other employees and discussed with the
Managing Director & CEO to decide on the annual
increments and performance incentives.

Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Director:
The Non-Executive / Independent Director may receive
remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending meetings
of Board or Committee thereof except Stakeholders
Relationship Committee/ Shareholders Grievance Committee
Meeting, for which no sitting fees shall be paid. The sitting
fees shall be paid as per the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under.

II. Audit Committee:
The existing ‘Audit Committee’ of the Company consists
of four Directors with Independent Directors forming a
majority and the said constitution is in line with the
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with the rules. The Audit Committee acts in
accordance with the ‘Terms of Reference’ specified by the
Board in writing from time to time.
The Composition of the Committee is as under:
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Sr. No. Name of the Member Designation
1 Mr. M. N. Bhagwat Chairman
2 Mr. Sanjay Jha Member
3 Mr. V. K. Verma Member
4 Dr. Vijay N. Gupchup Member

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee
The functions of the Audit Committee are broadly as under:
1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process

and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and
credible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and
terms of appointment of Auditors of the Company;

3. Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other
services rendered by them;

4. Reviewing with the management, the annual financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission
to the board for approval, with particular reference to:
a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s

Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s
Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section
134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices
and reasons for the same;

c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based
on the exercise of judgment by management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements
relating to financial statements;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions;
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

5. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial
statements before submission to the board for approval;

6. Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses /
application of funds raised through an issue (public issue,
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the
offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted
by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this
matter;

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and
performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions
of the company with related parties;

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company,

wherever it is necessary;
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk

management systems;

12. Reviewing with the management, performance of
statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
control systems;

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any,
including the structure of the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant
findings and follow up there on;

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by
the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected
fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems
of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the
payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;
a. Every listed company or such class or classes of companies,

as may be prescribed, shall establish a vigil mechanism
for directors and employees to report genuine concerns
in such manner as may be prescribed;

b. The vigil mechanism under sub-section (9) of section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules shall
provide for adequate safeguards against victimization
of persons who use such mechanism and make
provision for direct access to the chairperson of the
Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases;

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole-time
Finance Director or any other person heading the finance
function or discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the
candidate;

20. The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the
following information:
a. Management discussion and analysis of financial

condition and results of operations;
b. Statement of significant related party transactions

(as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by
management;

c. Management letters / letters of internal control
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

d. Internal audit reports relating to internal control
weaknesses; and

e. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration
of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be subject to
review by the Audit Committee;

21. The Audit Committee shall have powers, which should
include the following:
a. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate
into any matter in relation to the items specified in
sub-section (4) of section 177 of the Companies Act,
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2013 read with rules or referred to it by the Board and
for this purpose shall have power to obtain professional
advice from external sources and have full access to
information contained in the records of the company;

b. To seek information from any employee;
c. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice;
d. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant

expertise, if it considers necessary;
22. All Related Party Transactions shall require prior approval

of the Audit Committee.
Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions
of the company with related parties;

23. When money is raised through an issue (public issues,
rights issues, preferential issues etc.), the company shall
disclose the uses / applications of funds by major category
(capital expenditure, sales and marketing, working capital,
etc.), on a quarterly basis as a part of their quarterly
declaration of financial results to the Audit Committee.
Further, on an annual basis, the company shall prepare a
statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those
stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and place
it before the audit committee. Such disclosure shall be made
only till such time that the full money raised through the
issue has been fully spent. This statement shall be certified
by the statutory auditors of the company. Furthermore,
where the company has appointed a monitoring agency to
monitor the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, it shall place before the Audit Committee the
monitoring report of such agency, upon receipt, without
any delay. The audit committee shall make appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this
matter.

III. Stakeholders Relationship Committee / Shareholders
Grievance Committee:
The Committee has the mandate to review, redress
shareholders’ grievances and to approve all share transfers.
The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee / Shareholders Grievance Committee as on
March 31, 2018 is as under:-

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation
1 Mr. V. K. Verma Chairman
2 Mr. Sanjay Jha Member
3 Ms. Pallavi Jha Member

Mr. Vivek Wadhavkar, Senior Manager (Accounts and
Finance) has been designated as the Compliance Officer.
The functions of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee /
Shareholders’  Grievance Committee include the following:-
1. Transfer /Transmission of shares;
2. Issue of duplicate share certificates;
3. Review of shares dematerialized and all other related

matters;
4. Monitors expeditious redressal of investors’ grievances;
5. Non receipt of Annual Report and declared dividend;
6. All other matters related to shares.

IV. The Vigil Mechanism:
Your Company believes in promoting a fair, transparent,
ethical and professional work environment. The Board of
Directors of the Company has established a Whistle Blower
Policy & Vigil Mechanism in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for reporting
the genuine concerns or grievances or concerns of actual
or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of
conduct. The said Mechanism is established for directors
and employees to report their concerns. The policy provides
the procedure and other details required to be known for
the purpose of reporting such grievances or concerns. The
same is uploaded on the website of the Company
(www.walchandpeoplefirst.com).

15. QUALIFICATIONS GIVEN BY THE AUDITORS:
There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks
or disclaimers made by the Statutory Auditors of the
Company in their report and by Secretarial Auditor, in
their report.

16. CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED
PARTIES:
The company has entered into transactions with related
parties in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rules and the particulars of contracts
or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section
188(1), as prescribed in Form AOC-2 of the rules prescribed
under Chapter IX relating to Accounts of Companies under
the Companies Act, 2013, is appended as Annexure – II.

17. ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS
OWN PERFORMANCE AND THAT OF ITS
COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:
As required under section 178(2) of the Companies Act,
2013 and under Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013
on code of conduct for Independent directors a Comprehensive
exercise for evaluation of the performances of every
individual director, of the Board as a whole and its
Committees and of the Chairperson of the Company has
been carried by your company during the year under review
as per the evaluation criteria approved by the Board and
based on the guidelines given in schedule IV to the
Companies Act, 2013.
For the purpose of carrying out performance evaluation
exercise, three types of Evaluation forms were devised in
which the evaluating director has allotted to the individual
Director, the Board as a whole, its Committees and the
Chairperson appropriate rating on the scale of six.
Such evaluation exercise has been carried out:
(i) of Independent Directors by the Board;
(ii) of Non-Independent Directors by all the Independent

Directors in separate meeting held for the purpose on
31st January, 2018;

(iii) of the Board as a whole by all the Directors;
(iv) of the Committees by all the Directors;
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(v) of the Chairperson of your Company by the Independent
Directors in separate meeting after taking into account
the views of the Executive/ Non-Executive Directors;

(vi) of the Board by itself.
Having regard to the industry, size and nature of business
your company is engaged and the evaluation methodology
adopted is in the opinion of the Board, sufficient, appropriate
and is found to be serving the purpose.
The Independent Directors of the Company are evaluated
by the Non-Executive Directors and the other Directors of
the Board. The criteria’s for the evaluation of the Independent
Directors are:
a. Attendance record;
b. Possesses sufficient skills, experience and level of

preparedness which allows the person to clearly add
value to discussions and decisions ;

c. Able to challenge views of others in a constructive
manner;

d. Knowledge acquired with regard to the company’s
business/activities;

e. Understanding of industry and global trends;
f. Any qualitative comments and suggestions for

improving effectiveness.

18. AUDITORS:
M/s. K. S. Aiyar & Co., Statutory Auditors of your Company
having (ICAI Firm Registration No. 100186W) were
appointed at the 95th Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 31st July, 2015 for a period of 5 years i.e.
from financial year 2015-2016 to 2019-2020 subject to
the ratification by the Members in every Annual General
Meeting.
In view of the above, the Audit Committee is requested
to note the eligibility of the Statutory Auditors for
ratification of their appointment at the 98th Annual
General Meeting of the Company, based on the Certificate
received from them confirming that their ratification will
be in accordance with the limits as laid down under
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they do
not attract any disqualification u/s. 141 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

19. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:
The Company has appointed M/s. Pramod S. Shah and
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as a Secretarial
Auditor of the Company, according to the provision of
section 204 of the Companies, Act 2013 read with rules
for conducting Secretarial Audit of Company for the financial
year 2017-2018. The Report of the Secretarial Audit is
annexed herewith as Annexure III. The Secretarial Audit
Report does not contain any qualifications, reservation
or adverse remarks.

20. MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY:
No material changes and commitments other than in the
normal course of business have occurred after the close of
the year till the date of this Report, which affect the
financial position of the Company.

21. DETAILS OF NEW SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
There are no New Subsidiary/ Joint ventures/Associate
Companies in our Company.

22. DETAILS OF THE COMPANY WHO CEASED TO BE
ITS SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES:

Sr. Name Subsidiary / Date of cession of
No. of Joint ventures/ Subsidiary /

Company Associate Company Joint ventures/
Associate Company.

N.A N.A. N.A.

23. S T A T E M E N T  F O R  D E V E L O P M E N T  A N D
IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANANGEMENT
POLICY U/S 134:
As per Regulation 21 of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015 the top 100 listed entities needs to adopt
Risk Management Policy. Therefore, our Company is not
required to adopt Risk Management Policy.

24. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT
OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
The Company is committed to provide safe and conducive
environment to its employees during the year under review.
Your Directors further states that during the year under
review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

25. EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS:
The Company has not issued any equity shares with
differential voting rights.

26. DISCLOSURE AS PER RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014:
Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors,
KMPs and employees as required under section 197 (12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) and (2)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure
IV to this Report.

27. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED
BY THE AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
There are no frauds reported by the Auditor which are
required to be disclosed under Section 143 (12) of
Companies Act, 2013.

28. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND
INVESTMENT BY THE COMPANY:
The Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments
as per Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 for the year
ended 31.03.2018 is annexed with this report as Annexure V.
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29. DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION PAID TO
DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND
EMPLOYEES:
The Details with regards to the payment of Remuneration
to the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel is provided
in Form MGT-9–Extract of the Annual Return (appended
as Annexure I).

30. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY:
During the year under review, the Company has not developed
the policy on Corporate Social Responsibility as the Company
does not fall under the prescribed classes of Companies
mentioned under section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

31. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL
ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNAL IMPACTING THE GOING
CONCERN STATUS AND THE COMPANY’S
OPERATION IN FUTURE:
There are no material or significant orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and the company’s operation in future.

32. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and to the best of their knowledge and belief
and according to the information and explanations
obtained/received from the operating Management, your
Directors make the following statement and confirm that-
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable

accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company at the end of the financial year and of
the profit and loss of the company for that period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a
going concern basis;

e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls
to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
Your Directors place on record their sincere gratitude for
the assistance, guidance and co- operation the Company
has received from all stakeholders. The Board further
places on record its appreciation for the dedicated services
rendered by the employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ms. Pallavi Jha
Chairperson & Managing Director

DIN: 00068483
Address: 201, Sterling Heritage
39, N S Patkar Marg, Gamdevi,

Mumbai-400007

Place: Mumbai
Date: 02nd May, 2018



ANNEXURE TO BOARD’S REPORT
ANNEXURE  I

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i) CIN:- L65993MH1920PLC000791

ii) Registration Date - 6th July, 1920

iii) Name of the Company - Walchand PeopleFirst Limited

iv) Category  of the Company Company Limited by shares

Sub-Category of the Company Indian Non-Government Company

v) Address of the Registered office and contact details 1, Construction House ,5-Walchand Hirachand Marg,
Ballard Estate, Mumbai-400 001, Maharashtra, India.
022-67818181

vi) Whether listed company Yes

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar M/s. Computech Sharecap Limited
and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) - “Computech“, 147 Mahatma Gandhi Road,

Fort, Mumbai-400 023, Maharashtra.
Ph.: 022 - 22635001 / 22635002

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr.No. Name and Description  of NIC Code of the %  to total turnover of the
main products / services Product/ service Company

1. Consulting and Training Services 99929199 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. NAME AND ADDRESS CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of shares Applicable
No.  OF THE COMPANY SUBSIDIARY/ ASSOCIATE held Section

1. Walchand and Company U99999MH1922PTC001028 Holding company 54.98% 2(46) of
Private Limited Companies Act,

2013

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of  Shareholders No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the % Change
beginning of the year end of the year during the year

Demat Physical Total % of total Demat Physical Total % of total
shares shares

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 8036 0 8036 0.28 8036 0 8036 0.28 0
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt (s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. 1588234 0 1588234 54.69 1596547 0 1596547 54.98 0.29
e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total of (A) (1) 1596270 0 1596270 54.97 1604583 0 1604583 55.26 0.29
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(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total shareholding of
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2) 1596270 0 1596270 54.97 1604583 0 1604583 55.26 0.29

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks / FI 2800 9300 12100 0.42 2790 9300 12090 0.42 0
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture

Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-total (B)(1) 2800 9300 12100 0.42 2790 9300 12090 0.42 0

2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 68614 11150 79764 2.75 51327 11150 62477 2.15 -0.60
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders

holding nominal share
capital upto Rs. 2 lakh 775709 261080 1036789 35.70 792283 253490 1045773 36.01 -0.31

ii) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs. 2 lakh 26977 149740 176717 6.09 26977 149740 176717 6.09 0

c) Others (specify) 0 2250 2250 0.08 0 2250 2250 0.08 0

Sub-total (B)(2):- 871300 424220 1295520 44.62 870587 416630 1287217 44.32 -0.29
Total Public
Shareholding (B)=(B)(1) + (B)(2) 874100 433520 1307620 45.04 873377 425930 1299307 44.74 -0.29

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total (A+B+C) 2470370 2029520 2903890 100.00 2477960 425930 2903890 100 0

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the % Change
beginning of the year end of the year during the year

Demat Physical Total % of total Demat Physical Total % of total
shares shares
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning Share holding at the end % change in share
 No. of the year of the year holding during

No. of % of total %of Shares No. of % of total % of Shares the year
Shares Shares of  Pledged / Shares Shares of Pledged /

the company encumbered the company encumbered
to total to total
shares shares

1 Anuja Vivek Joshi 1026 0.04 0 1026 0.04 0 0

2 Kamalini Bahubali 5390 0.19 0 5390 0.19 0 0

3 Pallavi Jha 1620 0.06 0 1620 0.06 0 0

4 Walchand And Company
Private Limited 1588234 54.69 0 1596547 54.98 0 0.29

TOTAL 1596270 54.97 0 1604583 55.26 0 0.29

(iii)Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sr. Particulars Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding during
No. of the year the year

No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the

company company
At the beginning of the year 1596270 54.97 1596270 54.97

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Purchase of 8313 shares by the Promoters during the year
Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc)

At the End of the year 1604583 55.26 1604583 55.26

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sr. Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of
No. the year the year

For Each of the Top 10 No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
Shareholders shares of the shares of the

company company

1 VIVEK WADHAVKAR (TRUSTEE) 88700 3.05% 88700 3.05%
2 PALLAVI SANJAY JHA (TRUSTEE) 61040 2.10% 61040 2.10%
3 DNYANA ANAND PATIL 26977 0.93% 26977 0.93%
4 KRUTI CAPITAL SERVICES PVT LTD 18000 0.62% 18000 0.62%
5 BHAGWATI RAMESHCHANDRA GOHIL 13287 0.46% 13646 0.47%
6 ANJANA SINHA 11870 0.41% 11870 0.41%
7 KARVY STOCK BROKING LIMITED 14046 0.48% 10504 0.36%
8 SUPROVAT MITTER 10000 0.34% 10000 0.34%
9 NILESH RAMESHCHANDRA GOHIL HUF 7825 0.27% 9133 0.31%

10 ATMARAM NARAYAN SUKHTANKAR 7530 0.26% 7530 0.26%
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during
No. the year the year

For Each of the Directors No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
and KMP shares of the shares of the

company company

Pallavi Jha

At the beginning of the year 1620 0.06% 1620 0.06%

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the End  of the year 1620 0.06% 1620 0.06%

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total Indebtedness
excluding deposits Loans

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL

ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL

Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

i) Addition NIL NIL NIL NIL

ii) Reduction NIL NIL NIL NIL

Net Change NIL NIL NIL NIL

Indebtness at the end
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL

ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total (i+ii+iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr. Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/ Total Amount
No. Remuneration Manager

Ms. Pallavi Jha Mr. Sanjay Jha

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961 49,27,926 47,22,596 96,50,522

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - -
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission

- as % of profit 24,78,372 23,75,106 48,53,478
- others, specify…

5 Others, please specify

Perquisites- House 10,14,755 - 10,14,755

-Movable Assets 1,08,179 - 1,08,179

-Car - 39,600 39,600

LTA and other items 12,10,873 20,13,702 82,24,575

Total (A) 97,40,105 91,51,004 1,88,91,109

Ceiling as per the Act The total managerial The total managerial
remuneration payable in respect remuneration payable in respect
of financial year 2017-2018 of financial year 2017-2018 shall
shall not exceed eleven per not exceed eleven per cent of
cent of the net profit of the the net profit of the Company
Company for financial year for financial year 2017-2018 or
2017-2018 or if the same exceeds, if the same exceeds, it shall be
it shall be within the limits of within the limits of Schedule
Schedule V Part II of the V Part II of the Companies
Companies Act, 2013. Act, 2013.
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Rajeev Mr. V.  K. Mr. M. N. Dr. Vijay N. Ms. Shinjini Total
No. Dubey Verma Bhagwat Gupchup Kumar Amount
1. Independent Directors

• Fee for attending board /
committee  meetings 40,000 1,30,000 1,30,000 1,20,000 15,000 4,35,000

• Commission
• Others, please specify
Total (1) 40,000 1,30,000 1,30,000 1,20,000 15,000 4,35,000

2. Other Non-Executive Directors
•  Fee for attending board /
     committee meetings
• Commission
• Others, please specify

Total (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total (B)=(1+2) 40,000 1,30,000 1,30,000 1,20,000 15,000 4,35,000

Total Managerial Remuneration 40,000 1,30,000 1,30,000 1,20,000 15,000 4,35,000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act Sitting fee payable to the Director for attending the meeting of the Board or
Committee shall not exceed one lakh rupees per meeting of the Board or Committee.

C.   Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sr. Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
No. Remuneration

CEO Company CFO Total
Secretary

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) - - 40,65,433 40,65,433

 of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) - - - -

Income-Tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option - - - -

3. Sweat Equity - - - -

4. Commission - - - -
- as % of  profit
- others, specify…

5. Others, please specify - Incentive - - 3,00,000 3,00,000
Total - - 43,65,433 43,65,433

      Note: 1. The Company has a MD who act as a CEO
2. CS - Company is making efforts to find suitable candidate.
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Annexure – II

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
Not Applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Ms. Maithili Jha daughter of Ms. Pallavi Jha,
Chairperson and Managing Director and Mr. Sanjay Jha, Whole-time Director.

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Payment of Salary pursuant to the arrangement with regard
to employment.

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Permanent.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Senior Manager
- Brand and Corporate Strategy with a CTC of Rs. 10,89,988/- per annum for the financial year 2017-18.

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: N.A.

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board

Pallavi Jha
Chairperson & Managing Director

DIN: 00068483
Address: 201, Sterling Heritage 39,

N S Patkar Marg, Gamdevi
Mumbai-400007

Place: Mumbai
Date: 02nd May, 2018
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Annexure – III

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Walchand PeopleFirst Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Walchand PeopleFirst Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.
Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the year
ended March 31, 2018, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter :
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2018 according to the provisions of:
(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
(4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder;
(5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

(‘SEBI Act’):-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, as amended

from time to time;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, as amended from time to time;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (SS - 1 and SS - 2);
(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
During the period, all the decisions in the Board Meetings were carried unanimously.
We have relied on the representation made by the Company, its Officers and Reports of the Statutory Auditor for the systems
and mechanism framed by the Company for compliances under other Acts, Laws and Regulations applicable to the Company as
listed in Annexure I and Annexure II.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following Observations:
1. As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company was required to appoint following whole-time key managerial

personnel:
i) Managing director, or Chief Executive Officer or manager and in their absence, a whole-time director;
ii) Company Secretary; and
iii) Chief Financial Officer;
As per Section 203, the Company has appointed Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer but not appointed a
Whole Time Company Secretary for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2018. However, the Management has
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informed that they are in the process of appointing a Whole Time Company Secretary.
2. As per Regulation 6 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Listed entity

shall appoint a Qualified Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer. In this case since the Company has not
appointed a Whole-Time Company Secretary as mentioned above, the Compliance Officer appointed is a person
who is not a Qualified Company Secretary.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/actions having a major bearing on the Company’s
affairs.

Annexure I

To,
The Members
The Walchand PeopleFirst Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express

an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness

of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
4. Wherever required, we have obtained Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and

happening of events etc.
5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility

of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Pramod S. Shah & Associates
(Practising Company Secretaries)

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 04, 2018 Pramod Shah - Partner

Pramod S. Shah & Associates
FCS No.: 334
C P No.: 3804

Annexure II
(1) Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952 and Rules;
(2) Professional Tax Act, 1975 and Rules;
(3) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;
(4) Apprentices Act, 1961;
(5) Contract Labour (R&A) Act, 1970;
(6) Employment Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of vacancies) Act, 1959;
(7) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;
(8) Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;
(9) Income Tax Act, 1961;
(10)Minimum Wages Act, 1948;
(11) Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;
(12)Shop & Establishment Act, 1948;
(13)Finance Act, 2015;
(14)Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
(15)Maternity Benefit Act, 1961;
(16)Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1953.

Pramod S. Shah & Associates
(Practising Company Secretaries)

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 04, 2018 Pramod Shah - Partner

Pramod S. Shah & Associates
FCS No.: 334
C P No.: 3804



ANNEXURE IV

Details pertaining to remuneration as required under section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during
the Financial Year 2017-18, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees
of the Company for the Financial Year 2017-18 and the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) against the performance of the Company are as under:

Sr. Name Designation Remuneration Remuneration % increase % increase Ratio of Comparison Comparison
No. of of of in in Remuneration of the of the

Director/KMP Director/KMP Director/KMP Remuneration Remuneration of each Remuneration Remuneration
for the for the in the in the Director to of the KMP of the

Financial Financial Financial Financial median against the KMP against
Year 2017-18  Year 2017-18 Year 2017-18 Year 2017-18 remuneration performance the
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) (Excluding (Including (Including of the performance

(Excluding (Including perquisite perquisite perquisite Company of the
perquisite perquisite value of value of value of (Excluding Company

value of value of ESOPs ESOPs ESOPs perquisite (Including
ESOPs ESOPs exercised) exercised) exercised) of value of perquisite

exercised) exercised) employees ESOPs value of
for the exercised) ESOPs

Financial exercised)
Year

1 Pallavi Jha Chairperson 97,40,105/- 0 23.32% 0 0 0 0
&

Managing
Director

2 Sanjay Jha Executive 91,51,004/- 0 23.71% 0 0 0 0
Director

3 Shruthi Patni Chief 43,65,433/- 0 11.91% 0 0 0 0
Financial
Officer

and
Operations

Head
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The details of top ten employees of the company as per section 196 rule 5(2) of the companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) rules, 2014 are as per below:

Sr. Name of Designation Nature of Qualification Date Age of Last Nature of Percentage Remune-
No. Employee of Employment and of the Emplo- employment relation- of ration

Employees whether experience Commen- yee held by ship Equity
contractual of employee cement such if any shares

or otherwise of employee with the held by
Employ- before director/ employee

ment joining manager
the of the

Company Company

1 Pallavi Jha Chairperson & Permanent MBA 2007-07-26 53 HCC Wife of 0.06 97,40,105/-
Managing Mr. Sanjay Jha
Director

2 Sanjay Jha Executive Permanent MBA 2007-07-27 57 Bank of Husband of 0 91,51,004/-
Director America Ms. Pallavi Jha

3 Shruthi Patni Chief Financial Permanent CA - 16 yrs 2010-01-18 41 World Wide 43,65,433/-
Officer and Media Limited

Operations Head

4 Manu Nanda Vice President- Permanent PG Arts - 2011-12-12 48 Hero Mind 37,30,787/-
Business 24 yrs Exp Mine Institute

Development

5 Meghdoot Senior Business Permanent MBA - 2013-04-22 39 People Strong 28,84,944/-
Bose Consultant 15 Years HR Service

6 Sai Senior Business Permanent PGDBA - 2011-04-01 36 Info Edge 28,25,320/-
Viswanathan Consultant 12 yrs Limited

7 Isar Qureshi Associate Permanent MBA 2011-05-16 49 Tata AIG 27,03,084/-
Vice President- University - Insurance

Training 20 yrs

8 Mangesh Associate Permanent MMS - 24 yrs 2010-01-04 45 Greens and 23,86,562/-
Wagle Vice President - Pastures

Training Consultants

9 Madhu Associate Vice Permanent MBA - 2014-10-06 37 SHRM, 22,99,799/-
Vasudevan President - 15 yrs Times of India

Business
Development

10 Dilip AVP- Permanent MPM - 24 yrs 2006-06-19 48 Agakhan 21,65,434/-
Jayaram Research and Education

Consulting Service India

For and on behalf of the Board

Pallavi Jha
Chairperson & Managing Director

DIN: 00068483
Address: 201, Sterling Heritage 39,

N S Patkar Marg, Gamdevi
Mumbai-400007

Place: Mumbai
Date:  02nd May, 2018
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 Annexure V

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments in accordance
with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

Amount outstanding as at 31st March, 2018

Particulars Amount in INR

Loans given NIL

Guarantee given NIL

Investments made NIL

Loans, Guarantees given or Investments made during the Financial Year 2017-2018

Name of the entity Amount Nature of Transaction

NIL NIL NIL

For and on behalf of the Board

Pallavi Jha
Chairperson & Managing Director

DIN: 00068483
Address: 201, Sterling Heritage 39,

N S Patkar Marg, Gamdevi
Mumbai-400007

Place: Mumbai
Date:  02nd May, 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2017-2018
(As required under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015)
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 The Directors provides the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the financial year 2017-2018.

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
Corporate Governance is the application of best management practices, compliance of laws and adherence to ethical
standards to achieve the Company’s objective of enhancing stakeholder value and discharge of social responsibility. The
Corporate Governance framework includes corporate structures, culture, policies and the manner in which the corporate
entity deals with various stakeholders, with transparency being the key word. Accordingly, timely, adequate and accurate
disclosure of information on the performance and ownership forms the cornerstone of Corporate Governance. It is a journey
for constantly improving sustainable value creation and an upward moving target. Integrity, transparency, fairness,
accountability and compliance with the law are embedded in the Company’s robust business practices to ensure ethical and
responsible leadership both at the Board and at the Management level.
The Corporate Governance philosophy of Walchand PeopleFirst Limited is based on the following principles:
1. Management must have the executive freedom to drive the enterprise forward without undue restraints and Management

is the trustee of the shareholders capital and not the owner. This freedom of management should be exercised within a
framework of effective accountability.

2. Provide an enabling environment to harmonize the goals of maximizing stakeholder value and maintaining a customer
centric focus.

3. Have a simple and transparent corporate structure driven solely by business needs.
4. Communicate externally, in a truthful manner, about how the Company is running internally.
5. Make clear distinction between personal conveniences and corporate resources.
6. Be transparent and maintain a high degree of disclosure levels in all facets of its operations.
7. Satisfy the spirit of the law and not just the letter of the law.
8. Our philosophy on Corporate Governance is thus concerned with the ethics, values and morals of Walchand PeopleFirst

Limited and its Directors, who are expected to act in the best interests of the Company and remain accountable to
shareholders and other beneficiaries for their action.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board of Directors and its Committees play a fundamental role in upholding and nurturing the principles of good
governance which translates into ethical business practices, transparency and accountability in the Company’s dealing
with its Members and other stakeholders and the utilization of resources for creating sustainable growth and societal wealth.
Walchand PeopleFirst Limited has a very balanced and diverse Board of Directors, who actively participates at the Board
and Committee Meetings by providing valuable guidance to the Management on various aspects of business, policy direction,
governance, compliance etc. and plays a critical role on strategic issues.
a. Composition of the Board of Directors:

The name and category of Director on the Board, the number of Directorship held by them in other Company and numbers
of the Committees in which they are the Member or Chairman are given herein below:

Sr. Name of  the Director Category of the Director No. of Directorships No. of Membership/
No. in each Companies Chairmanship of other

Board Committees
Public Private Member Chairman

1 Ms. Pallavi Jha Chairperson & Managing Director - 2 - -
2 Mr. Sanjay Jha Whole-Time Director - 2 - -
3 Mr. M. N.Bhagwat Independent Non- Executive 1 - - -
4 Mr. V. K. Verma Independent Non- Executive - - - -
5 Dr. Vijay Gupchup Independent Non- Executive 4 - 2 2
6 Mr. Rajeev Dubey Independent Non- Executive 8 1 11 4

b. Number and dates of Meetings along with the attendance of the Directors in the Board Meetings and
the Annual General Meeting:
The following are the details of the Meetings of the Board and Annual General Meeting held during the financial year
2017-2018:

Sr. Name of the Director      Attendance at the Board Meetings held on Attendance at the Annual General Meeting
No. 21.04.2017 31.07.2017 06.11.2017 30.01.2018 held on 31.07.2017
1 Ms. Pallavi Jha
2 Mr. Sanjay Jha
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3 Mr. Rajeev Dubey x x
4 Mr. V. K. Verma
5 Mr. M. N.Bhagwat
6 Dr. Vijay Gupchup
7 Ms. Shinjini Kumar x NA NA x

c. Relationship between the Directors inter-se:
Ms. Pallavi Jha, the Chairperson and Managing Director of the Company is the wife of Mr. Sanjay Jha, the Whole- Time
Director of the Company.
None of the Directors other than the above mentioned Directors are related to each other.

d. Number of shares and convertible instruments held by the Non-Executive Director in the Company:
None of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company hold any securities in the Company.

e. Familiarization programmes imparted to Independent directors:
Independent Directors play an important role in the governance processes of the Board. They bring to bear their expertise
and experience on the deliberations of the Board. This enriches the decision making process at the Board with different
points of view and experiences and prevents conflict of Interest in the decision making.
At the time of appointing a Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to him /her and the details pertaining to
their roles, responsibilities, functions and the Board’s expectation are explained in the Meeting.
In furtherance to the above, the Company holds Business Review Meeting every quarter to explain the details of the
performance of the Company. Further, Directors’ Vision Meeting is held annually to set the strategic directions of the
Company. A presentation is shared by Ms. Pallavi Jha, Chairperson and Managing Director of the Company giving the details
of the governance and internal control processes and other relevant information pertaining to the Company’s business.
The details of Familiarization programmes imparted to Independent directors are as follow:

Number of Programmes attended Number of hours spent by Independent Director Number of hours spent by
by Independent Director  during the year (Business Review Meetings and Independent Director

Vision and Strategy Meeting.) on cumulative basis till date

27.04.2016 1 hour 1 hour
28.07.2016 2 hours 3 hours
08.11.2016 1 hour and 30 minutes 4 hours and 30 minutes
02.02.2017 1 hour and 30 minutes 6 hours
03.02.2017 7 hours and 30 minutes 13 hours and 30 minutes
21.04.2017 1 hour and 30 minutes 15 hours
31.07.2017 1 hour and 30 minutes 16 hours and 30 minutes
06.11.2017 1 hour and 30 minutes 18 hours
30.01.2018 1 hour and 30 minutes 19 hours and 30 minutes
31.01.2018 7 hours and 30 minutes 27 hours

f. Board’s Functioning & Procedures:
The Board has complete access to any information within the Company. At Meetings of the Board, it welcomes the
presence of Senior Management who can provide additional insights into the items being discussed.
The items placed at the Meeting of the Board include the following:-
i. Unaudited Quarterly/Half Yearly financial results and Audited Annual Accounts of the Company, results and capital

employed, for consideration and approval;
ii. Minutes of Meetings of Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee /Shareholders Grievance Committee

and Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
iii. Abstracts of circular resolutions passed;
iv. General notices of interest;
v. Sale and/or purchase of investments, fixed assets;
vi. Review compliance of all laws applicable to the Company including the requirements of the Securities and Exchange

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges and
steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non- compliances, if any;

vii. Related party transactions;
viii.Reviewing the Company’s Financial and Risk Management policies;
ix. Reviewing the business plan and strategy of the Company.
All the items in the Agenda are accompanied by notes giving comprehensive information on the related subject and in
certain matters such as financial/business plans and financial results, detailed presentations are made. The Agenda
and the relevant notes are sent in advance separately to each Director to enable the Board to take informed decisions.
The Minutes of the Meetings of the Board are circulated through email to all Directors and confirmed at the subsequent



30

Meeting. The Minutes of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship
Committee/ Shareholders’ Grievance Committee are also circulated through email to all Members and thereafter
tabled for discussion at the subsequent Board Meeting.

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
The Company has developed all the necessary Committees of the Board namely:
a. Audit Committee;
b. Nomination & Remuneration Committee;
c. Stakeholders Relationship Committee/ Shareholders Grievances Committee.
The constitution, terms of reference and the functioning of the above mentioned Committees of the Board is explained herein.
The Board reviews the functioning of these committees from time to time. The Chairman of these Committees conducts the
Meetings and also informs the Board about the summary of discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The Minutes of
the Committee Meetings are sent to all Directors are tabled at the respective Board / Committee Meetings.

I. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Audit committee acts as a link between the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Board of Directors. The primary
objective of the Audit Committee is to provide effective supervision of the Management’s Financial Reporting process with
a view to ensure accurate, timely and proper disclosures.
i. Composition of the Audit Committee:-

The Board constituted an Audit Committee of Directors on 26.04.2001.
The Audit Committee is duly formed and meets the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and also the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
The composition of the Audit Committee as at 31.03.2018 and dates and details of the Members participation at the
Meetings of the Committee are as under:

Sr. Name of the Director Category                                                               Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings held on
No. 21.04.2017 31.07.2017 06.11.2017 30.01.2018
1 Mr. M. N.Bhagwat Chairman- Independent Director
2 Mr. Sanjay Jha Member- Whole-Time Director
3 Mr. V. K. Verma Member- Independent Director
4 Dr. Vijay Gupchup Member- Independent Director

All the Members on the Audit Committee possess the requisite qualification for appointment on the Committee and have
sound knowledge of finance, accounting practices and Internal Control.
As prescribed under the Act, the Chairman of the Committee who is an Independent Director was present at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

ii. Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:
1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that

the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;
2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
4. Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission

to the board for approval, with particular reference to:
a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report

in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;
b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
c. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
f. Disclosure of any related party transactions;
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report;

5. Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;
6. Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue,

rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds
of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
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11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
12. Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control

systems;
13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department,

staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;
14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected

fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;
16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-

audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;
17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders

(in case of non-payment  of declared dividends) and creditors;
18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

a. Every listed company or such class or classes of companies, as may be prescribed, shall establish a vigil
mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine concerns in such manner as may be prescribed;

b. The vigil mechanism under sub-section (9) of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013, shall provide for adequate
safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and make provision for direct access to the
chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases;

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function
or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

20. The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:
a. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
b. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management;
c. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
d. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
e. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by

the Audit Committee.
21. The Audit Committee shall have powers, which should include the following:

a. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified in
sub-section (4) of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013, or referred to it by the Board and for this purpose shall
have power to obtain professional advice from external sources and have full access to information contained in
the records of the company;

b. To seek information from any employee;
c. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice;
d. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
22. All Related Party Transactions shall require prior approval of the Audit Committee.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
23. When money is raised through an issue (public issues, rights issues, preferential issues etc.), the company shall

disclose the uses / applications of funds by major category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing, working
capital, etc.), on a quarterly basis as a part of their quarterly declaration of financial results to the Audit Committee.
Further, on an annual basis, the company shall prepare a statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and place it before the audit committee. Such disclosure
shall be made only till such time that the full money raised through the issue has been fully spent. This statement
shall be certified by the statutory auditors of the company. Furthermore, where the company has appointed a
monitoring agency to monitor the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, it shall place before the Audit
Committee the monitoring report of such agency, upon receipt, without any delay. The audit committee shall
make appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.
All the items in the Agenda are accompanied by notes giving comprehensive information on the related subject
and in certain matters such as financial results, detailed presentations are made. The Agenda and the relevant
notes are sent in advance separately to each Member to enable the Committee to take informed decisions.
The Minutes of the Meetings of the Committee are circulated through email to all the Members and confirmed
at the subsequent Meeting.

II. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The purpose of the Committee shall be to discharge the Board’s responsibilities relating to formulation of compensation
plans and policies of the Company’s Executive Directors.
i. Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:-

The Board constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors on 29.04.2004.
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as at 31.03.2018 and dates and details of the
Members participation at the Meetings of the Committee are as under:
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Sr. Attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration
No. Name of the Director Category Committee Meeting held on 21.04.2017
1 Mr. V. K.Verma Chairman- Independent Director
2 Mr. M. N.Bhagwat Member- Independent Director
3 Mr. Rajeev Dubey Member- Independent Director

ii. Terms of Reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows:
1. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend

to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;
2. To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management and recommend

to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance;
3. To determine such policy, taking into account all factors which it deems necessary. The objective of such policy shall

be to ensure that members of the executive management of the Company are provided with appropriate incentives
to encourage enhanced performance and are, in a fair and responsible manner, rewarded for their individual
contributions to the success of the Company;

4. To review the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy;
5. To approve the design of any performance related pay schemes operated by the Company and approve the total

annual payments made under such schemes;
6. To decide on all share incentive plans for approval by the Board and shareholders. For any such plans, determine

each year whether awards will be made, and if so, the overall amount of such awards, the individual awards to
Executive Directors and other senior executives and the performance targets to be used;

7. To consider and make recommendations in respect of any other terms of the service contracts of the executives and
any proposed changes to these contracts, and to review the company’s standard form contract for executive directors
from time to time;

8. To consider any other matters relating to the remuneration of or terms of employment applicable to the remuneration
of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.

iii. Criteria for the Performance Evaluation of the Independent Directors Meeting:
As required under section 178(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and
also the Regulations of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015, a comprehensive exercise for evaluation of the performances of every individual director, of the Board
as a whole and its Committees and of the Chairperson of the Company has been carried by your company.
For the purpose of carrying out performance evaluation exercise, three types of Evaluation forms were devised in which
the evaluating director has allotted to the individual Director, the Board as a whole, its Committees and the Chairperson
appropriate rating on the scale of six.
Such evaluation exercise has been carried out:
i. of Independent Directors by the Board;
ii. of Non-Independent Directors by all the Independent Directors in separate meeting held for the purpose;
iii. of the Board as a whole by all the Directors;
iv. of the Committees by all the Directors;
v. of the Chairperson of your Company by the Independent Directors in separate meeting after taking into account the

views of the Executive/ Non-Executive Directors;
vi. of the Board by itself.
Having regard to the industry, size and nature of business your company is engaged and the evaluation methodology
adopted is in the opinion of the Board, sufficient, appropriate and is found to be serving the purpose.
The Independent Director of the Company are evaluated by the Non-Executive Directors and the other Directors of the
Board. The criteria for the evaluation of the Independent Directors are:
a. Attendance record;
b. Possesses sufficient skills, experience and level of preparedness which allows the person to clearly add value to

discussions and decisions;
c. Able to challenge views of others in a constructive manner;
d. Knowledge acquired with regard to the company’s business/activities;
e. Understanding of industry and global trends;
f. Any qualitative comments and suggestions for improving effectiveness.

III. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE/ SHAREHOLDERS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE MEETING:
The Committee has the mandate to review, redress shareholders’ grievances and to approve all share transfers.
i. Size and Composition:-

The Company had duly constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee/ Shareholders Grievance Committee in
July, 2001 to specifically look into the redressal of the shareholder’s grievances and also the share transfers and other
investor related matters.
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The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee/ Shareholders Grievance Committee as on 31.03.2018 is
as under:-

Sr. No. Name of the Director Category
1 Mr. V. K. Verma Chairman- Non-Executive Director
2 Mr. Sanjay Jha Whole-Time Director as Member
3 Ms. Pallavi Jha Chairperson & Managing Director as Member

Mr. Vivek Wadhavkar, Senior Manager (Accounts and Finance) has been designated as the Compliance Officer.
ii. Meeting of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee / Shareholders’ Grievance Committee Meetings:-

During the financial year 2017 - 2018, 11 (Eleven) Meetings of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee / Shareholders’
Grievance Committee were held. The dates on which it was held were:
i. 13.05.2017; iv. 24.06.2017; vii. 29.12.2017; x. 12.02.2018;
ii. 20.05.2017; v. 01.07.2017; viii. 22.01.2018; xi. 17.02.2018.
iii. 03.06.2017; vi. 30.09.2017; ix. 05.02.2018;

iii. The functions of the Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee / Shareholders’ Grievance Committee Meetings
include the following:-

1. Transfer /Transmission of shares;
2. Issue of duplicate share certificates;
3. Review of shares dematerialized and all other related matters;
4. Monitors expeditious redressal of investors’ grievances;
5. Non receipt of Annual report and declared dividend,
6. All other matters related to shares.

iv. Investor Grievance Redressal:
Number of complaints received and resolved to the satisfaction of investors during the year under review and their
break-up are as under:

Type of complaint No. of complaints
Non Receipt of Annual Reports 0
Non Receipt of Dividend Warrants 1
Non Receipt of Shares lodged for Transfer/Exchange 0
Non Receipt of Certificates 0
Others (Duplicate/Transmission/Procedureetc.) 0
Total 1

All valid share transfers received during the accounting year ended 31.03.2018 have been acted upon. There were no share
transfers pending as on 31.03.2018, for more than 30 days.
The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee/Shareholder’s Grievance Committee Meetings attends the matters related to
Share Transfers, Deletion and Transmission.

4. REMUNERATION PAID TO THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY:
At present, Non–executive and Independent Directors are not paid any remuneration except sitting fees for attending Board
Meetings/Audit Committee Meetings/ Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings. No Sitting fees are paid for the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee/ Shareholders’ Grievance Committee Meetings.
Details of remuneration paid to Directors during the financial year ended 31.03.2018 are as under:

(Amount in lakhs)

Name of Director Salary Contribution to Perquisites Performance Sitting Total
and  P.F. Gratuity and Pay Fees

Commission Superannuation Fund
Ms. Pallavi Jha 49.28 15.68 23.34 24.78 - 113.08
Mr. Sanjay Jha 47.23 15.02 20.53 23.75 - 106.53
Mr. Rajeev Dubey - - - - 0.40 0.40
Mr. V. K. Verma - - - - 1.30 1.30
Mr. M. N.Bhagwat - - - - 1.30 1.30
Dr. Vijay N. Gupchup - - - - 1.20 1.20
Ms. ShinjiniKumar - - - - 0.15 0.15
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5. GENERAL BODY MEETING:
a. The particulars of the last three Annual General Meetings are as under:

Financial Day and Date of the Location of the Time of the Annual Special resolution passed
Year Annual General Meeting Annual General Meeting General Meeting

2014-2015 Friday, 31.07.2015 Kilachand Conference room, 3:00 P.M No special Resolution
Indian Merchants’ Chamber,
IMC Marg, Churchgate,
Mumbai - 400020

2015-2016 Thursday, 28.07.2016 Kilachand Conference room, 3:00 P.M 1. Re-appointment of Ms. Pallavi
Indian Merchants’ Chamber, Jha as the Managing Director.
IMC Marg, Churchgate, 2. Re-appointment of Mr. Sanjay
Mumbai - 400020 Jha as the Whole- time Director.

2016-2017 Monday, 31.07.2017 Kilachand Conferenceroom, 3:00 P.M 1. Noting of pattern of Payment of
Indian Merchants’ Chamber, remuneration to Ms. Pallavi Jha
IMC Marg, Churchgate, and Mr. Sanjay Jha for the
Mumbai - 400020 Financial year 2016-17.

b. Details of the Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot:
During the year under review, no resolution has been passed through the exercise of postal ballot.

6. DISCLOSURE:
There are no materially significant related party transactions of the Company which have potential conduct with the
interests of the Company at large.
The Company has complied with the requirements of the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) and Statutory Authorities on all matters related to Capital Markets and no penalties/ structures
were imposed on the Company during the last three years. The Company has adopted a whistle Blower Policy and has
established the necessary mechanism for employees to report concerns about unethical behavior.
During the year the following amounts were transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund:

Particulars Date of Transfer Amount (INR)
Matured Deposits NIL NIL
Interest on Matured Deposits NIL NIL
Unpaid Dividend NIL NIL

7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
The quarterly, half yearly and annual results are communicated to all the members of the Company by publishing in
English and Marathi National dailies namely Free Press Journal and Navshakti respectively.
The Financial Statements are also displayed on the website of the Company www.walchandpeoplefirst.com.
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of this Annual report, which is sent to each member by post.
The Company informs the Stock Exchange all price sensitive matters or such other matters which are material and of
relevance to the shareholders.

8. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:
I. Details of the Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2017-2018:

Date: 31.07.2018
Day: Tuesday Time: 03:00 P.M.
Venue: Kilachand Conference room, Indian Merchants’ Chamber, IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai - 400020

II. Financial Calendar 2018- 2019:

Name of the Quarter/ Half year Due date for the compliance
Quarter ending 30.06.2018 On or before 14.08.2018
Quarter/Half year ending 30.09.2018 On or before 14.11.2018
Quarter ending 31.12. 2018 On or before 14.02.2019
Quarter/Year ending 31.03.2019 On or before 30.05.2019

III. Dividend:
Company recommends Nil dividend.
Date of Book Closure: 24th July, 2018 to 30th July, 2018 (both days inclusive).

IV. Details of the Stock Exchange in which the Company is listed:
Name of the Stock exchange: The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
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Listing fee for the year 2017-18 has been paid to the Stock Exchange.
Stock Code- Physical : 501370 on The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
ISIN No. NSDL & CDSL : INE695D01021
Market Price Data : High / Low price during each Month of 2017-18 on The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and
BSE Sensex are as under:

Month Open High Low Close No.of No. of  Total Deliverable % Deli. Qty Spread Spread
Price Price Price Price Shares Trades Turnover Quantity to Traded High-Low Close-

(Rs.)  Qty Open
Apr-17 152.00 164.35 140.00 141.30 44,765 651 68,43,812 34,794 77.73 24.35 -10.70
May-17 142.15 150.45 120.00 136.00 49,144 681 66,80,667 40,054 81.50 30.45 -6.15
Jun-17 137.00 140.00 122.05 135.00 28,204 408 37,58,413 23,457 83.17 17.95 -2.00
Jul-17 134.00 137.80 123.10 129.95 19,210 412 24,99,270 14,462 75.28 14.70 -4.05
Aug-17 136.00 136.00 109.20 114.30 16,982 284 20,67,416 14,594 85.94 26.80 -21.70
Sep-17 115.00 154.00 111.10 122.30 1,00,999 1476 1,37,47,126 61,431 60.82 42.90 7.30
Oct-17 121.00 141.80 114.50‘ 131.95 26,576 460 35,15,023 18,556 69.82 27.30 10.95
Nov-17 130.45 190.00 130.20 174.35 2,28,015 2785 3,84,53,381 1,60,204 70.26 59.80 43.90
Dec-17 175.00 198.65 157.00 195.80 91,550 1236 1,64,31,817 71,825 78.45 41.65 20.80
Jan-18 200.05 202.75 146.25 148.10 1,49,747 2206 2,77,11,701 1,17,127 78.22 56.50 -51.95
Feb-18 145.00 152.00 119.30 130.20 31,580 500 42,67,036 28,154 89.15 32.70 -14.80
Mar-18 131.5 146.5 114.8 124.3 38,129 490 49,80,373 30,707 80.53 31.7 -7.20

V. Share Transfer System and other related matters:
• Registrar and Share Transfer Agent :

For both physical & demat segments: M/s. Computech Sharecap Limited.
“Computech”, 147, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 023
Tel No: 22635001/02  Fax No.: 22635005
Email: helpdesk@computechsharecap.com

• Share Transfer System:
The shares lodged for transfer are processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and are approved by
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee/Shareholders’ Grievance Committee. Shares sent for transfer in physical
form are registered and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt, subject to documents being valid
and complete in all respects. Similarly, all requests for demat are received and processed by the Registrar and
Transfer Agent and confirmations given to the depositories within the prescribed time limit.

• Nomination Facility for Shareholding:
As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nominations is available for shareholders, in
respect of the shares held by them. Nomination forms can be obtained from the Registrar and Share Transfer agent
of the Company.

• Payment of Dividend through Electronic Clearing Service:
The Securities and Exchange Board of India has made it mandatory for all companies to use the bank account
details furnished by the depositories for depositing dividend through Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) to investors
wherever ECS and bank details are available. In the absence of ECS facilities, the Company will print the bank
account details, if available, on the payment instrument for distribution of dividend.
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• Unclaimed Dividends:
Members wishing to claim dividends, which remain unclaimed, are requested to correspond with Mr. Vivek Wadhavkar,
Compliance Officer, at the Company’s registered office. Members are requested to note that dividends not enchased
or claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, will as per
sections 205A and 205C of the Companies, Act, 1956 and Section 123 & other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules, be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

• Correspondence regarding Change in Address:
Members are requested to address all correspondences, including dividend matters, to the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents, M/s. Computech Sharecap Limited, “Computech”, 147, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400023,
Tel No:22635001/5002, Fax No.: 22635005, Email: helpdesk@computechsharecap.com.

• Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.03.2018:

No. of Equity Shares held No. of Share- holders % of Shareholders No. of shares held % of share holding

1 - 50 3738 55.52 104934 3.61
51 - 100 1271 18.88 114184 3.93
101 - 200 761 11.30 121642 4.19
201 - 300 337 5.01 87863 3.03
301 - 400 126 1.87 45694 1.57
401 - 500 141 2.09 68112 2.35
501 - 1000 195 2.90 150671 5.19
1001 AND ABOVE 164 2.44 2210790 76.13
TOTAL 6733 100.00 2903890 100.00

Shareholding Pattern as on 31.03.2018:

Category No. of shares held Percentage to total (%)
a. Promoters, Directors & Promoter group 1604583 55.25
b. Banks, FIs & Insurance Cos. 12090 0.42
c. Bodies Corporate 62477 2.15
d. Indian Public 1222490 42.10
e. Pakistan Enemy Cases 2250 0.08
Total 2903890 100.00

• Dematerialization of Shares: The shares of the Company can be held and traded in electronic form.
85.33% (2477960 shares) of the Company’s shares have been dematerialized as
on 31.03.2018.

• Outstanding ADRs/ GDRs: Nil/Warrants or any Convertible Instrument, conversion date and likely impact
on equity.

• Plant location: Not Applicable.

• Address of the Company: Walchand PeopleFirst Limited
1, Construction house, 5, Walchand Hirachand Marg,
Ballard estate, Mumbai - 400001.
Tel: 022-67818181
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Fax: 22610574
Email: vivek@walchandgroup.com
Website: www.walchandpeoplefirst.com

9. CODE OF CONDUCT:
The Board of Directors has adopted the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management. The
Code is reviewed from time to time by the Board. The said Code has been communicated to the Directors and the Members
of the Senior Management. The Code has also been posted on the Company’s website www.walchandpeoplefirst.com.

10. CEO/ CFO CERTIFICATE:
The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company gives Annual Certification on financial reporting
and Internal Controls to the Board in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer also gives quarterly certification on financial results before the
Board in terms of Regulation 33(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(As annexed in Annexure I).

11. TRADING IN THE COMPANY’S SHARES BY DIRECTORS AND DESIGNATED EMPLOYEES:
In compliance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, your Company has adopted a Code of
Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading.
Mr. Vivek Wadhavkar, Compliance officer of the Company is responsible for setting policies, procedures for the preservation
of price sensitive information, pre-clearance of trade, monitoring of trades and implementation of the Code of Conduct for
trading in Company’s securities under the overall supervision of the Board. The same is displayed on the website of the
Company www.walchandpeoplefirst.com.

12. DISCLOSURES REGARDING APPOINTMENT OR RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AS REQUIRED UNDER
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015:
1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, one-third of the total number of Directors

for the time being is liable to retire by rotation. Accordingly one Director of the Company viz. Mr. Sanjay Jha will be
retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. Mr. Sanjay Jha, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

1. Mr. Sanjay Jha
Mr. Sanjay Jha
Whole Time Director
Walchand PeopleFirst Limited
Sanjay Jha is the Executive Director of the Dale Carnegie Training operations in India, which has a global experience of having
worked with over 400 of the Top Fortune 500 companies. In India, Dale Carnegie has worked with over 8000 corporate firms,
multinational companies, public sector, government and NGOs and trained more than 310,000 Dale Carnegie graduates in the
last 15 years. His area of professional interest and management science specialization includes leadership development,
change management, corporate culture and ethics, business strategy and emotional intelligence. Sanjay is a Motivational
speaker, an Executive Coach and Mentor who has advised top management, including CEO’s as well as senior political leaders.
Jha is also the National Spokesperson of the Indian National Congress Party since 2013 and represents his political party in
TV debates and panel discussions. He is the President of All India Professionals Congress, Maharashtra.
Sanjay has often received an overwhelming feedback and recognition for his high- quality training and leadership talk. He is one
of the senior leaders in the worldwide Dale Carnegie Training network, and has addressed global audiences in New York,
Washington, Los Angeles, Chicago, Singapore, Bermuda, Taiwan, Mexico and Toronto. Jha has addressed managers and leaders
at ICICI Pru, TEDx, IBM, Axis Bank, Goldman Sachs, Microsoft, Oracle, British Gas, Brookings, The Doon School, Toastmaster,
St. Xavier’s College, Dainik Bhaskar, Crompton Greaves, Pricewaterhouse Coopers, Bajaj Electricals, SHRM, United Nations
Young Achiever’s Conclave, SRCC, IIT, Standard Chartered, Tata Motors, CII, IMC, Venture Capital Association, NHRD,
Apple, Bharat Petroleum, Citibank, Mahindra & Mahindra etc. He has conducted several corporate programs focused on
executive development, advised companies on corporate image management, done executive coaching and consulted with
companies. He has also addressed business schools, industry conferences and knowledge symposiums, and has also been
engaged frequently as a strategic consultant/ advisor on training to a leading political party.
He has made several contributions to mainline news and business dailies and magazines such as Business Standard, Indian
Express, Financial Express, Hindustan Times, Mid-Day, Tehelka, Rediff.com and The Huffington Post, and appears regularly to
air his views on print and electronic media. He is one of India’s top influencers on social media like Twitter.
He has founded one of the world’s leading internet portals called CricketNext.Com which was ranked once amongst Alexa Top
1000 sites globally, and is now part of the Network 18 media Group.
Prior to starting Dale Carnegie, Sanjay was instrumental in setting up the private sector mutual fund industry in India, having
worked as a Senior Vice President with ITC Threadneedle Asset Management ( part of BAT plc, UK) and as a Vice President ,
Alliance Capital ( New York, USA). His career in banking included stints with both Bank of America and ANZ Grindlays Bank
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where he worked in NRI marketing and operation services, product-technology training, retail banking and branch management.
He started his career in sales with Bharat Petroleum.
Jha completed his MBA from XLRI, Jamshedpur and his Master’s in Economics from Gokhale Institute of Politics and Economics,
University of Pune. He graduated with distinction in Economics from Fergusson College, Pune.
Sanjay has also written a cricket anthology titled 11—Triumphs, Trials and Turbulence in Indian cricket, two cricket quiz books
and published his first collection of poems. Jha has recently authored a book on leadership called The Superstar Syndrome (The
Making Of A Champion), co-authored with Dr. Myra White, who is a Professor at the Harvard Medical School. This book was
launched in August 2013 and featured in the Crossword Bestseller list.

2. Mr. Uday Phadke
Mr. Uday Phadke
Independent Director
Walchand PeopleFirst Limited
Mr. Uday Phadke (DIN: 00030191), was appointed as an Additional Independent Director by the Board on the recommendation
of Nomination and Remuneration Committee in their Meeting held on 02.05.2018 with immediate effect.
a. Brief Profile of Mr. Uday Phadke:

Mr. Uday Phadke, 67 years, holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce and law from Mumbai University.
He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
Mr. Phadke had been with Mahindra & Mahindra (M&M) since 1973. He was President –Finance, legal & financial services
sector and a member of the Group Executive Board at M&M & thereafter “Principal Advisor-Finance” at M&M. He retired
on 31.08.2015.
He was a Director on the board of certain companies in the Mahindra Group  such as Mahindra & Mahindra Financial
Services Limited, Mahindra Holidays & Resorts India Ltd, Mahindra Lifespace Developers limited, Mahindra World City
Developers Limited, etc. He was also on Audit Committee of these companies.
He has received CFO awards from various organizations for excellence in different areas of financial management including
award as Best CFO in the manufacturing sector from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
He was a member of the SEBI Committee on Disclosures and Accounting Standards. He has been Chairman of the Direct
Taxes Committee of the Bombay Chamber of Commerce and Industry and was on the Accounting Standards Board of the
ICAI, as a nominee of CII. He has also been a member of the National Advisory Committee of Accounting Standards
constituted under the Companies Act, as a nominee of CII.
He is currently an independent director on the board of IDFC AMC Trustee Company & on the board of Kotak Infrastructure
Debt Fund Limited. He is also a Governing Council member of Banking Codes & Standards Board of India.

b. Disclosure of relationship between directors interse:
There is no relationship between Mr. Uday Phadke and any other Directors of the Company.

c. Name of Listed Company in which Mr. Uday Phadke holds Directorship and Membership of the Committees of the Board:-
Name of the listed entities in which Director holds Directorship- NIL
Name of the listed entities in which Director holds Chairmanship in the Committee- NIL
Name of the listed entities in which Director holds Membership in Committee- NIL

d. Shareholding in the Company – Mr. Uday Phadke does not hold any shares in the Company.

13. CERTIFICATION ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCES:
As required under the Regulations of SEBI (Listings Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, certificate
of compliances of Corporate Governance issued by M/s. Pramod S. Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries
annexed here as Annexure II.

14. OTHER DISCLOSURE:
a) There are no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest of the

listed entity at large;
b) The Company is fully complied with the applicable regulations and hence there are no penalties imposed upon the

Company by any of the Authority including the Stock exchange.
c) The Vigil Mechanism and the Whistle Blower policy are duly established and none of the personnel have been denied to

access to the Audit Committee for any of their grievances.
d) The Material Related Party policy of the Company is hosted on the website of the Company viz.

www.walchandpeoplefirst.com.
e) The website of the Company is duly updated as per the Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulation, 2015.
f) All the mandatory requirements are duly complied with.



39

ANNEXURE I

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

We, Pallavi Jha, Chairperson & Managing Director and Shruthi Patni, CFO, of WALCHAND PEOPLEFIRST
LIMITED, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that:

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31.03.2018 and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or any omitted material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.

C. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that they have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and
they have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such
internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify
these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated, based in our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit
committee:

1. significant changes , if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
2. significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in

the notes to the financial statements; and

3. instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial
reporting.

Yours faithfully,

Pallavi Jha Shruthi Patni
Chairperson & Managing Director Chief Financial officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 02nd May, 2018
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ANNEXURE II

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as per the provisions of
Chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To
The Members,
Walchand PeopleFirst Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Walchand PeopleFirst Limited for the
financial year ended 31.03.2018 as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the Company
with stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance are the responsibility of the Management. Our examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements
of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the provisions as specified in
Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the Company with stock exchanges.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or the effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Pramod S. Shah & Associates
Practising Company Secretary

Pramod S. Shah - Partner
Membership No. 334

COP No: 3804
Place: Mumbai
Date: 02nd May, 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Walchand PeopleFirst Limited,

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements
of Walchand PeopleFirst Limited (‘the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flow
for the year then ended and the statement of changes
in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS
Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income and cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rules made thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind
AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act,
the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there
under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS
financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor ’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the financial
position of the company as at March 31, 2018, and its
financial performance including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

Other Matter
The Company had prepared separate sets of statutory
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
and 31 March 2016 in accordance with Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(as amended) on which we issued auditor’s reports to
the shareholders of the Company dated 21 April 2017
and 27 April 2016, respectively. These financial
statements have been adjusted for the differences in
the accounting principles adopted by the Company on
transition to Ind AS, which have also been audited by
us. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor ’s Report)

Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Government
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of India - Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in terms of
sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we enclose
in the ‘Annexure – A’, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report
that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information

and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and the Statement
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of
the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on March 31, 2018 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the
director is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure B’; and

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending

litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements - Refer note no. 29 to the Ind AS
financial statements;

ii. The Company does not have any long-term
contracts having material foreseeable losses.
The company does not have any derivative contracts;

iii. There were no amounts during the year which
were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

For K. S. Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 100186W

Satish Kelkar
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date:  May 2, 2018 Membership No: 38934

Annexure - A to the Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our Report of even date on the financial statements
for the year ended on March 31, 2018, of Walchand
PeopleFirst Limited)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by
the management during the year. In our opinion
the frequency of verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of
the Company.

(ii) In absence of inventories, clauses (ii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(iii) As informed, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, sub-clause (a),
(b) and (c) are not applicable.

(iv) As the company doesn’t have any loans, investments,
guarantees or securities provided in terms of section
185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, the clause
(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from
the public to which the provisions of section 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 or the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit)
Rules 2014 or the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India apply.

(vi) We have been informed that the Company is not
required to maintain cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, which
has been relied upon.

(vii) (a) According to the records of the Company, the
Company is generally regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax and
any other statutory dues applicable to it. Based
on our audit procedures and according to the
information and explanations given to us, there
are no arrears of undisputed statutory dues which
remained outstanding as at March 31, 2018, for
a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us and records of the Company, the dues
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outstanding of property tax and municipal tax
which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute, are as follows:

Name of Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where
statute dues (Rs. In the amount disputes

Lakhs) relates pending

Municipal Corporation Property 289.02 2000-01 to Bombay High
of Greater Mumbai(BMC)  Tax 2017-18 Court

Mumbai Port Trust Municipal 147.56 1st Jan.’99 to City Civil
Dues 31st March’ 18 Court

(viii)According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not taken any money from
any financial institution, bank or debenture holder,
and hence clause 3(viii) of the order is not applicable
to the Company.

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year.

(x) According to the information and explanations
furnished by the management, which have been
relied upon by us, there were no frauds on or by
the Company noticed or reported during the course
of our audit.

(xi) According to the information and explanations give
to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has paid/provided
for managerial remuneration in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii)All transactions with related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind
AS financial statement as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review
and hence clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected
with him and hence clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For K. S. Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No: 100186W

Satish Kelkar
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date:  May 2, 2018 Membership No.: 38934

Annexure-B to Auditor’s report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of WalchandPeoplefirst Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
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weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K. S. Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No: 100186W

Satish Kelkar
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date:  May 2, 2018 Membership No.: 38934
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Rs. in Lakhs
PARTICULARS Note  As at  As at  As at

No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
I. ASSETS

(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, plant and equipments 2 203.54 219.40 234.40
(b) Capital work - in - progress 2                         -                        - 0.91
(c) Investment properties 4 11.02                   12.24 13.06
(d) Other Intangible assets 3 33.31                   37.56 8.66
(e) Intangible assets under development 3                         -                        - 15.38
(f) Investments in gold 5 5.69                     4.72 3.75
(g) Financial assets

(i) Investments 6                         -                        -                         -
(ii) Other financial assets 7                   41.74                   49.30                   44.66

(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 8                   44.09                   30.79                   13.58
(i) Current tax assets (net) 9                 324.78                 342.81                 436.07

664.17 696.81 770.47
(2) CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 1,044.55 419.27 548.22
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11                   50.33                   27.16                   26.99
(iii) Other balances with banks 12 559.20 650.49 422.36
(iv) Other financial assets 13                   19.71                   26.85                   42.16

(b) Other current assets 14                   36.22                   62.98                   39.35
1,710.01 1,186.74 1,079.08

TOTAL 2,374.18 1,883.54 1,849.54
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) EQUITY
(a) Equity Share Capital 15                 290.39 290.39 290.39
(b) Other Equity 16 1,358.24 1,148.03 1,110.06

1,648.63 1,438.42 1,400.45
(2) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Other financial liabilities 17                   27.43 25.07 22.92

(b) Provisions 18                   19.63                        -                         -
47.06 25.07 22.92

(3) CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables 19                 127.07                   80.38                   70.12
(ii) Other financial liabilities 20                 294.03                 188.82                 241.36

(b) Other current liabilities 21                 143.63                   71.28                   69.23
(c) Provisions 22                 113.77                   79.56                   45.46

678.49 420.05 426.17
TOTAL 2,374.18 1,883.54 1,849.54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
Notes on accounts form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our attached report of the even date For and on behalf of the board of directors

For K. S. AIYAR & CO. PALLAVI JHA Chairperson and Managing Director
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 100186W SANJAY JHA Whole Time Director

Satish Kelkar SHRUTHI PATNI Chief Financial Officer
Partner
Membership No. 38934
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 2, 2018
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Rs. in Lakhs
PARTICULARS Note  For the year Ended  For the year Ended

No. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Revenue
Revenue from Operations 23                       2,681.36                       2,324.03
Other income 24                          135.14                          172.72
Total Revenue                       2,816.50                       2,496.75

Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 25                       1,414.21                       1,339.80
Royalty and related expenses                          296.17                          283.99
Training expenses                          188.76                          167.08
Travel, lodging and conveyance expenses                          196.83                          138.70
Rent and maintenance expense                            68.36                            62.97
Marketing expenses                            68.58                            76.42
Legal, Professional and Recruitment expenses                            63.16                            61.12
Finance Cost                              2.51                              2.17
Depreciation and amortisation expenses                            46.39                            49.14
Other Expenses 26                          188.65                          185.83
Total Expenses                       2,533.60                       2,367.22

PROFIT BEFORE TAX                          282.90                          129.53

Tax Expenses 27
Current Tax                            90.97                            47.16
Income tax earlier years                            (6.21)                              6.35
Deferred tax                          (13.30)                          (17.21)
PROFIT AFTER TAX (A)                          211.44                            93.23

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans                            (1.70)                          (17.29)
Income tax relating to above items                              0.47                              5.72

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME                            (1.23)                          (11.58)
FOR THE YEAR (B)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME                          210.21                            81.65
FOR THE YEAR (A+B)

EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE 28
Equity shares of par value Rs 10/- each
Basic and Diluted                              7.28                              3.21

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1
Notes on accounts form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our attached report of the even date For and on behalf of the board of directors

For K. S. AIYAR & CO. PALLAVI JHA Chairperson and Managing Director
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 100186W SANJAY JHA Whole Time Director

Satish Kelkar SHRUTHI PATNI Chief Financial Officer
Partner
Membership No. 38934
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 2, 2018
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Cash Flow Statement For the Year Ended 31st March, 2018

                                       2017-18                                   2016-17
Particulars Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs

A Cash flows from operating activities:
Net Profit before tax 282.90 129.54
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 46.39 49.14
Interest income (38.81) (40.35)
Loss / (Profit) on sale of assets 0.02 (2.75)
Fixed assets written off - 0.54

Provision for doubtful debts 11.08 0.31
Provision for expenses written back (8.87) 9.81 (20.24) (13.35)

292.71 116.18
Adjustment for:
Current assets, Trade receivables and Loans and advances (603.78) 108.79
Payables and Other liabilities 289.25 (314.53) 13.96 122.75

Net cash from operating activities before income tax (21.82) 238.93
Taxes paid (66.74) 39.77

Net cash from operating activities (88.56) 278.70

B Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets (25.64) (47.09)
Sale of fixed assets 0.52 3.39
Investment in bank fixed deposits (909.67) (958.59)
Maturity of bank fixed deposits 1,000.95 730.46
Purchase of investments (0.97) (0.97)
Interest income 46.47 35.66
Net cash from investing activities 111.66 (237.15)

C Cash flow from financing activities:
Dividend Paid 0.06 (34.00)
Dividend Tax Paid - (7.39)
Net cash from financing activities 0.06 (41.39)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 23.17  0.17

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash on Hand 1.11 0.85
Balances with Banks 26.05 27.16 26.14 26.99

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of year 50.33 27.16

Components of Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Cash on Hand 0.93 1.11
Balances with Banks 49.40 26.05

50.33 27.16

As per our attached report of the even date For and on behalf of the board of directors

For K. S. AIYAR & CO. PALLAVI JHA Chairperson and Managing Director
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 100186W SANJAY JHA Whole Time Director

Satish Kelkar SHRUTHI PATNI Chief Financial Officer
Partner
Membership No. 38934
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 2, 2018



Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2018

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Rs. In Lakhs

Balance as on 1st April, 2016          290.39

Additions during the year                  -

Balance as on 31st March, 2017          290.39

Additions during the year                  -

Balance as on 31st March, 2018          290.39

B. Other Equity Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars                                                                                                            Reserves and Surplus

Capital  Securities General Retained Total
Redemption Premium Reserve Earnings

Reserve

Balance as on 1st April, 2016              8.50          230.95            91.74          778.87       1,110.06

Profit for the year                  -                  -                  -            93.23            93.23
Other Comprehensive income for the year                  -                  -                  -           (11.58)          (11.58)
Dividend                  -                  -                  -           (36.30)          (36.30)
Dividend distribution tax                  -                  -                  -             (7.39)            (7.39)

Balance as on 31st March, 2017              8.50          230.95            91.74          816.84      1,148.03

Profit for the year                  -                  -                  -          211.44          211.44
Other Comprehensive income for the year                  -                  -                  -             (1.23)            (1.23)
Dividend                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -
Dividend distribution tax                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -

Balance as on 31st March, 2018              8.50          230.95            91.74       1,027.05      1,358.24

As per our attached report of the even date For and on behalf of the board of directors

For K. S. AIYAR & CO. PALLAVI JHA Chairperson and Managing Director
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 100186W SANJAY JHA Whole Time Director

Satish Kelkar SHRUTHI PATNI Chief Financial Officer
Partner
Membership No. 38934

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 2, 2018
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1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

I General Information:
Walchand PeopleFirst Limited (the ‘Company’) is engaged in the business of imparting training in soft skills
like leaderships, communication, presentation, etc. The Company had acquired the franchise rights to offer,
sell, teach and impart the training methods, techniques and programs developed by Dale Carnegie Training &
Associates, U.S.A. to individuals and employees of the corporate.

II Significant accounting policies
1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements
(a) Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (‘the Act’) read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015.For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Company had
prepared its financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards notified under the Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (‘Previous GAAP’).
Detailed explanation on how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s Balance
Sheet, financial performance and cash flows is given under Note 33.These financial statements have been
prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as stated in the accounting policies set out below. The accounting policies have been applied consistently
over all the periods presented in these financial statements.

(b) Historical Cost Convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value.

(c ) Current non-current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

(d) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per
the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

1.2 Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during
the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events
and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates.

1.3 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipments are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if
any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use.

1.4 Intangible Assets
Expenses incurred on franchisee rights and software is treated as an intangible asset and tested for impairment.

1.5 Investment Properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Company, is classified as investment property. Investment property is measured at its cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment if any.

1.6 Depreciation
Depreciation is computed using the Written Down Value Method (“WDV”) as per the useful life of the asset as
prescribed in part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 leaving a residuary value of 5% of original cost
of the asset.
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1.7 Impairment
(a) The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment

based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the
weighted average cost of capital.

(b) After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful
life. A previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances.
However the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed
by charging usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

1.8 Revenue Recognition
Training Income

(a) In case of Open Programs, income is recognized at the commencement of the program.
(b) In case of Corporate Programs, appropriate revenue is recognized when confirmed order is received and there

is reasonable certainty of completion of the program.
(c) In case of long-term course (i.e. courses more than 6 weeks duration), revenue is accrued over the period of

the course.

Other Income
(e) Dividend Revenue is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established by the balance

sheet date.
(f) Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate

applicable.

1.9 Foreign Currency Transactions
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b) Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(c) Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing exchange rate.

(d) Exchange Differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement or restatement of monetary items at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized
as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

1.10 Retirement and other Employee Benefits
(a) Contributions to Provident Fund and Superannuation scheme are defined contribution plans. The Company’s

contribution paid/ payable toward these defined contributions plans are recognised as expenses in the Statement
of Profit and Loss during the period to which the employee renders the related service. There are no other
obligations other than the contributions payable to repsective funds.

(b) Company’s liability towards gratuity is considered as a Defined Benefit Plan. The present value of the obligations
towards Gratuity is determined based on acturial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The obligation
is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that is determined by
reference to market yields on goverment securities at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating
to the terms of the related obligations.

(c) Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Other actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the
period in which they occur in the statement of profit and loss.

1.11 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist
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of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

1.12 Segment Reporting Policies
The Company has a single segment namely “ Training”. Therefore the Company’s business does not fall under
different operating segments as defined by Ind AS - 108

1.13 Leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risk and reward of ownership of the leasehold
assets are classified as operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement
of profit and loss on straight-line basis over the lease term unless the payments are structured to increase in
line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

1.14 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.  Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity
share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share
during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and
reverse share split (consolidation of shares). For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net
profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders & the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.15 Taxes
(a) Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.
(b) Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with

the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. Tax rates and tax laws used to compute amount are those that are
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

(c) 1. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred tax is measured
based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

2. Deferred Tax liabilities are recognised for all timing differences.
3. Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable

certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can
be realised. In situations where the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all
deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that
they can be realised against future taxable profits.

4. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the
taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws.

5.   The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. The Company writes-
down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or
virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

(d) Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at
each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no
longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

1.16 Provisions and Contingencies
(a) A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can
be made. At the end of each reporting period, provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at a future date. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time
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is recognised as interest expense and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

(b) Contingent liablity is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle obligation.

(c) Contingent liabilities are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying the economic
benefit is remote.

1.17 Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short
term investment with an original maturity of 3 months or less.

1.18 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

(a) Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement:
The Company recognizes a financial asset in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Where the fair value of a financial asset at initial recognition is different from its transaction
price, the difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognized as a gain or loss in the
Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition. If the fair value is determined through a quoted market
price in an active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation technique that uses
data from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input).In case the fair value is not determined using a level 1 or level
2 input as mentioned above, the difference between the fair value and transaction price is deferred appropriately
and recognized as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that such gain or loss
arises due to a change in factor that market participants take into account when pricing the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement:
The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost.

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in

order to collect contractual cash flows, and
b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of the
Company.

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)Where the Company’s
management makes an irrevocable choice on initial recognition to present fair value gainsand losses on
specific equity investments in other comprehensive income (Currently no such choice made), there is no
subsequent reclassification, on sale or otherwise, of fair value gains and losses to the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)A financial asset is measured at
FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as explained above. This is a residual category
applied to all other Financial assets of the Company.

Derecognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when:
i. The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;
ii. The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially

transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.



Impairment of financial assets :
The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend, industry
practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

(b) Financial Liabilities :
Initial recognition and measurement:
The Company recognizes a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value minus, in the case of
financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial liability.Where the fair value of a financial liability at initial recognition is
different from its transaction price, the difference between the fair value and the transaction price is recognized
as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition if the fair value is determined through
a quoted market price in an active market for an identical asset (i.e. level 1 input) or through a valuation
technique that uses data from observable markets (i.e. level 2 input). In case the fair value is not determined
using a level 1 or level 2 input as mentioned above, the difference between the fair value and transaction price
is deferred appropriately and recognized as a gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent
that such gain or loss arises due to a change in factor that market participants take into account when pricing
the financial liability.

Subsequent measurement:
All financial liabilities of the Company are subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Derecognition:
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

1.19 Standards issued but not yet effective :
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amended Rules, 2018 (“amended rules”). As per the amended rules, Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” supersedes Ind AS 11, “Construction contracts” and Ind AS 18, “Revenue” and is applicable for all
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 April 2018.

IndAS115:
Ind AS 115 introduces a new framework of five step model for the analysis of revenue transactions. The model
specifies that revenue should be recognised when (or as) an entity transfers control of goods or services to a
customer at the amount to which the entity expects to be entitled. The new revenue standard is applicable to
the Company from 1 April 2018.

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements.
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Note : 2
Notes forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS : Rs. in Lakhs

                        GROSS CARRYING VALUE               DEPRECIATION/AMORTIZATION       NET BLOCK
ASSETS As at Additions Deductions As at As at For the Deductions As at As at As at

April 1, 2017   during the during the March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017 year during the March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
year    year           year

Buildings 177.82 - - 177.82 8.70 8.28 - 16.98 160.84 169.12
Plant and machinery 7.71 - - 7.71 1.36 1.12 - 2.48 5.23 6.35
Furniture and fixtures 10.91 1.72 - 12.63 2.27 1.90 - 4.17  8.46 8.65
Data Processing and
allied equipments 39.29 13.51 0.54 52.26 19.50 16.68 - 36.18 16.08 19.79
Office equipments 13.01 4.19 - 17.20 4.74 4.52 - 9.26 7.94 8.27
Electric instalations 1.33 - - 1.33 0.33 0.23 - 0.56 0.77 1.01
Vehicles 9.11 - - 9.11 2.91 1.98 - 4.89 4.22 6.21

Total 259.18 19.42 0.54 278.06 39.81 34.71 - 74.52 203.54                 219.40

Capital Work in progress                             -                         -

Notes forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS : Rs. in Lakhs

                        GROSS CARRYING VALUE               DEPRECIATION/AMORTIZATION       NET BLOCK
ASSETS As at Additions Deductions As at As at For the Deductions As at As at As at

April 1, 2016   during the during the March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016 year during the March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
year    year           year

Buildings 177.70 0.12 - 177.82 - 8.70 - 8.70 169.12 177.70
Plant and machinery 7.71 - - 7.71 - 1.36 - 1.36 6.35 7.71
Furniture and fixtures 7.32 3.61 0.01 10.91 - 2.27 - 2.27 8.65 7.32
Data Processing and
allied equipments 24.01 16.45 1.17 39.29 - 19.60 0.10 19.50  19.79 24.01
Office equipments 7.22 5.89 0.10 13.01 - 4.75 0.01 4.74  8.27 7.22
Electric instalations 1.33 - - 1.33 - 0.33 - 0.33 1.01 1.33
Vehicles 9.11 - - 9.11 - 2.91 - 2.91 6.21 9.11

Total 234.40 26.07 1.28 259.19 - 39.92 0.11 39.81 219.40 234.40

Capital Work in progress - 0.91

Note : 3
Notes forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

INTANGIBLE ASSETS : Rs. in Lakhs

                        GROSS CARRYING VALUE               DEPRECIATION/AMORTIZATION       NET BLOCK
ASSETS As at Additions Deductions As at As at For the Deductions As at As at As at

April 1, 2017   during the during the March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017 year during the March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
year    year           year

Franchise fees - - - - - - - - - -
Software 45.48 6.22 - 51.70 7.92 10.47 - 18.39 33.31 37.56

Total 45.48 6.22 - 51.70 7.92 10.47 - 18.39 33.31 37.56

Intangible Assets
under development -  -

Notes forming part of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

INTANGIBLE ASSETS : Rs. in Lakhs

                        GROSS CARRYING VALUE               DEPRECIATION/AMORTIZATION       NET BLOCK
ASSETS As at Additions Deductions As at As at For the Deductions As at As at As at

April 1, 2016   during the during the March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016 year during the March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
year    year           year

Franchise fees - - - - - - -                         -                             -                         -
Software 8.66 36.82 - 45.48 - 7.92 - 7.92 37.56 8.66

Total 8.66 36.82 - 45.48 - 7.92 - 7.92 37.56 8.66

Intangible Assets
under development - 15.38
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4 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Gross carrying amount
Deemed cost as on 1st April 2016 / Closing balance 13.55 13.06 13.06
Additions - 0.49 -
Disposal - - -
Closing Gross block 13.55  13.55 13.06

Accumulated Depreciation
Opening balance 1.31  - -
Additions 1.22 1.31 -
Disposal - - -
Closing accumulated depreciation 2.53 1.31 -
TOTAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 11.02 12.24 13.06
FAIR VALUE AS ON DATE 6,759.94 6,404.43 6,698.74

4A LEASES PROVIDED
The Company has provided its certain premises though operating and cancellable lease arrangements.The disclosures of
future lease rent receipts are as follows:

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Not later than one year 73.41 70.26 66.95
Later than one year and not later than five years 1.18 74.29 144.26
Later than five years - - -

Details of assets given on operating lease under cancellable arrangements:-

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Gross carrying amount 13.55 13.55 2.80
Accumulated depreciation 2.53 1.31 2.34

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Depreciation recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss account 1.22  1.31 0.05
Lease rent income during the year 72.43 69.13 63.80

4B LEASES TAKEN
The Company has taken certain premises though operating and cancellable lease arrangements.The disclosures of future
lease payments are as follows:

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Not later than one year 59.60 60.11 39.19
Later than one year and not later than five years 223.88  247.68 76.08
Later than five years 81.99 126.71 -

The company has entered into operating lease arrangements for its office premises which are cancellable and renewable
as per terms.The related rent expenses is Rs 65.16 Lakhs.(Previous Year - Rs 56.71 Lakhs).
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5 INVESTMENT IN GOLD

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Gold coins 5.69 4.72 3.75
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GOLD 5.69 4.72 3.75

Market value of Investment in gold coin as on  31st March, 2018 is Rs. 5.47 Lakhs (as on 31st March 2017 is Rs. 4.28 and
as on 1st April 2016 is Rs. 3.36 Lakhs)

6 FINANCIAL ASSETS - INVESTMENTS

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017 As at April 01, 2016

Face Rs. in Rs. in Rs. in
Value Quantity Lakhs Quantity Lakhs Quantity   Lakhs

Non - Current Investments
Unquoted Investments
1) Investment in Equity shares
Bombay Mercantile Co-op Bank Ltd. 30 166 0.05 166 0.05  166 0.05
Total- A 0.05 0.05 0.05

2) Investment in immovable property
Walchand Co-op. Housing Society Ltd.* 50  5 0.00 5 0.00 5 0.00
TOTAL - B 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL (A + B) 0.05 0.05 0.05
Less: Provision for investment 0.05 0.05 0.05
TOTAL INVESTMENTS - - -

* represents amount less than Rs. 1000

7 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Security Deposits
i) Unsecued, considered good

1. Electricity deposit 7.06 6.96 6.96
2. Rent deposit paid 19.51 21.17 22.78
3. Other deposits 15.17 15.17 14.92

ii) Unsecued, considered doubtful
Security Deposit 2.24 2.24 2.24
Less: provision for doubtful debts (2.24) (2.24) (2.24)

Other Bank balances
i) In deposit accounts  (maturity more than 12 months) - 6.00 -
TOTAL OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 41.74 49.30 44.66
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8 DEFERRED TAXES

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference in Book and Tax WDV of Fixed Assets - - 0.02
Total – A - - 0.02

Deferred Tax Assets
Difference in Book and Tax WDV of Fixed Assets 4.73 2.45 -
Expenditure u/s 43B of The Income tax Act 1961 39.36 28.34  12.54
MAT credit entitlement - asset - - 1.06
Total – B 44.09 30.79  13.59

NET DEFERRED TAX ASSET / (LIABILITIES)  - (B - A) 44.09 30.79 13.58

9 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

I) Other loans and advances
Income Taxes 507.17 527.74 573.39
Less: Provision for taxation (182.39) (184.93) (137.32)

TOTAL CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) 324.78 342.81 436.07

10  TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Unsecured
(a) Considered good 1,044.55 419.26 548.23
(b) Considered Doubtful 21.74 13.99 18.82
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (21.74) (13.99) (18.82)
TOTAL TRADE RECEIVABLES 1,044.55 419.27 548.22

11  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand 0.93 1.11 0.85

Balances with banks
In current accounts 42.57 19.29 21.68
Balances with banks in unpaid dividend accounts 6.83  6.76 4.46
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 50.33 27.16 26.99

12  OTHER BALANCES WITH BANKS

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Other Bank balances
In deposit accounts  (maturity more than 3 months) 559.20 650.49 422.36
TOTAL OTHER BALANCES WITH BANKS 559.20 650.49 422.36
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13 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit 19.19 26.85 22.16
Others 0.52 0.00  20.00
TOTAL OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 19.71 26.85 42.16

14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

 I) Unsecured, considered good
1) Others loan and advances

a) Prepaid expenses 29.60 25.80 21.51
b) Advances to employees 2.36 1.90 1.60
c) Advances paid to vendors 4.26 7.28 16.24
d) Others - 28.00 -

36.22 62.98 39.35

II) Unsecured, considered doubtful
1) Others loan and advances

a) Advances to employees 1.33 1.33 1.68
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances to employees (1.33) (1.33)  (1.68)

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 36.22  62.98 39.35

15 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Authorised capital:
2,30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(Previous year - 2,30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each ) 2,300.00 2,300.00 2,300.00
2,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each
( Previous year - 2,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each ) 200.00 200.00 200.00
Total 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,500.00

Issued, Subscribed and paid up Capital:
Equity Share capital
29,03,890 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each, fully paid up
(Previous year- 29,03,890 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid up) 290.39 290.39 290.39
TOTAL EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 290.39 290.39 290.39

15.1 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

Equity shares                                             As at March 31, 2018         As at March 31, 2017                  As at April 01, 2016

Particulars No of shares Rs. in Lakhs No of shares Rs. in Lakhs No of shares Rs. in Lakhs
At the beginning of the period 2,903,890           290.39 2,903,890 290.39 2,903,890 290.39
Issued during the period - - - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 2,903,890           290.39 2,903,890 290.39 2,903,890 290.39

15.2 Terms and rights
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled
to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.The Board of Directors has recommended
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Equity dividend of Rs. Nil for the year ended 31st March 2018 (Rs. Nil for the year ended 31st March 2017 and Rs. 1.25 per
share for the year ended 31st March 2016 subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

15.3 Holding company share holding details:-
Out of the 29,03,890 Equity shares, 15,96,747 Equity Shares are held by the holding company.
(Previous year out of 29,03,890 Equity shares, 15,88,234 Equity Shares are held by the holding company).

15.4 The details of the shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2018 is set out  below: -

Name of the shareholder                                             As at March 31, 2018       As at March 31, 2017           As at April 01, 2016

Particulars No of shares % held No of shares % held No of shares % held
Walchand & Company Private Limited 1,596,747 54.99 1,588,234 54.69 1,588,234 54.69

16 OTHER EQUITY

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Capital Redemption Reserve 8.50 8.50 8.50
Securities Premium  Reserve 230.95 230.95 230.95
General Reserve 91.73 91.73 91.74

Surplus - Opening balance 816.85 778.87 530.25
Add: Net profit after tax transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss 211.44 93.23  248.98
Add / (Less) : Other comprehensive income for the year (1.23) (11.58) (0.36)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,027.05 860.54 778.87
Appropriations:-

Final Dividend - 36.30 -
Dividend tax - 7.39  -
Amount transferred to general reserve
Surplus - Closing balance 1,027.05 816.85 778.87

TOTAL OTHER EQUITY 1,358.24 1,148.03 1,110.06

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve :

Capital Redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve created at the time of redemption of Preference Shares.

Securities Premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. These reserve is utilised in accordance with the
provisions of the Act.

General reserve
General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.
General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income.

17 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Deposit received from tenant 27.43 25.07 22.92
TOTAL OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 27.43 25.07 22.92

18 PROVISIONS - NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Gratuity Obligation 19.63 - -
TOTAL PROVISIONS - NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 19.63 - -
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19 TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Dues of Micro, small and medium enterprises - - -
Oher creditors 127.07 80.38 70.12
TOTAL TRADE PAYABLES 127.07 80.38 70.12

Disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act
Company has sent letters to suppliers to confirm whether they are covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Act, 2006 as well as they have filed required memorandum with the prescribed authorities. This information is required
to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises development Act,2006 and has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of the information available with the company and have been relied
upon by the auditors.

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Principal amount unpaid at the end of the year -  - -
Interest unpaid at the end of the year - - -
Balance of MSME parties -  - -

20 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Unpaid Dividends
(There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to
Investor Education and Protection Fund) 6.83 6.76 4.46
Provision for expenses 287.20 182.06 236.90
TOTAL OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  294.03 188.82 241.36

21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Statutory dues 79.16 32.35 25.53
Other payables 49.28 26.68 25.18
Income received in advance 15.19 12.25 18.52
TOTAL OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 143.63 71.28 69.23

22  PROVISIONS - CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at As at  As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

a) Provision for employee benefits 72.29 51.06 33.77
b) Gratuity Obligation 41.48 28.50 11.69
TOTAL PROVISIONS - CURRENT LIABILITIES 113.77 79.56 45.46

23 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars  For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017

Income from operation - Training services                          2,681.36                          2,324.03
TOTAL REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS                          2,681.36                          2,324.03
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24 OTHER INCOME

Particulars  For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017

Rent Income                               72.43                               69.13
Interest on Fixed Deposit                               38.81                               40.35
Provision / Creditors Written Back                                 8.87                               20.24
Interest From Income Tax Refunds                               12.53                               36.81
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets                                    -                                 2.75
Sundry Receipts                                 2.50                                 3.45
TOTAL OTHER INCOME                             135.14                             172.72

25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Particulars  For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017

Salaries and bonus                          1,292.66                          1,218.50
Contribution to Provident fund, Gratuity and other funds                               70.61                               49.04
Staff welfare                               50.95                               72.26
TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES                          1,414.21                          1,339.80

26 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017

Repairs to building                                 1.57                               14.48
Repairs to plant and machinery                                 4.92                                 5.79
Insurance and Maintenance Expenses                                 9.62                               12.73
Rates and taxes                                 7.69                               11.18
Electricity charges                               16.48                               20.34
Telephone and Internet charges                               22.56                               19.30
Freight expenses                               25.58                               20.19
Directors Sitting Fees                                 4.58                                 5.10
Provision for Doubtful Debts                               11.08                                 0.31
Fixed asset written off                                    -                                 0.54
Loss on sale of Fixed assets                                 0.02                                    -
Miscellaneous expenses                               77.50                               70.19
Audit Fees

a) Statutory Fees                                 4.29                                 3.03
b) Tax Audit Fees                                 0.66                                 0.61
c) Limited Review & other fees                                 1.80                                 1.83
d) Expenses Reimbursement                                 0.29                                 0.22

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES                             188.65                             185.83
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27 TAX EXPENSE

Particulars  For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017

Income taxes
Current Tax                               90.97                               47.16
Net Current tax Liability                               90.97                               47.16

Income tax of earlier years                               (6.21)                                 6.35
Net Income tax of earlier years Liability                               (6.21)                                 6.35

Deferred Tax (assets) / Liability
MAT Credit                                    -                                 1.06
Deferred Tax (assets) / Liability                             (13.30)                             (18.27)

(13.30)                             (17.21)
TOTAL TAX EXPENSE                               71.46                               36.30
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Note 27A :  Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit for the year is as under :

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

 March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Enacted Income tax rate in India applicable to the Company 27.5525% 33.0630%
Profit before tax 282.90             129.53
Current tax expenses on Profit before tax expenses at the enacted income tax rate in India 77.94 42.83
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 31.90 39.66
Deduction under section 24 of the Income Tax Act                (5.77) (6.59)
Tax in respect of earlier years                (6.21) 6.35
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year                (0.32) (6.82)
Others (26.10) (39.13)

Tax expense as per statement of Profit and Loss 71.46 36.30

Note 27B :  The major components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets arising on account of timing differences are
as follows:

As at 31st March, 2018

Particulars Balance Sheet Profit & Loss OCI Balance Sheet
01.04.2017 2017-18 2017-18 31.03.2018

Difference between written down value/capital work in
progress of fixed assets as per the books of accounts
and Income Tax Act,1961. 2.45 2.28  - 4.73
Provision for expense allowed for tax purpose on payment basis 22.62              10.55                     -               33.17
Remeasurement benefit of the defined benefit plans through OCI                 5.72                   -                 0.47                 6.19
Deferred tax (expense)/benefit              12.83                 0.47
Net Deferred tax Asset               30.79               44.09

As at 31st March, 2017

Particulars Balance Sheet Profit & Loss OCI Balance Sheet
01.04.2016 2016-17 2016-17 31.03.2017

Difference between written down value/capital work in
progress of fixed assets as per the books of accounts
and Income Tax Act,1961. (0.02)                2.47                     -                 2.45
Provision for expense allowed for tax purpose on payment basis 12.54              10.08                     -               22.62
Mat Credit Entitlement Asset                 1.06              (1.06)                     -                     -
Remeasurement benefit of the defined benefit plans through OCI                     -                   - 5.72 5.72
Deferred tax (expense)/benefit              11.49 5.72
Net Deferred tax Asset               13.58 30.79
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28 EARNING PER SHARE
RECONCILIATION OF BASIC AND DILUTED SHARES USED IN COMPUTING EARNING PER SHARE

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

 March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Number of shares considered as basic weighted average shares outstanding 2,903,890 2,903,890
Add: Effect of dilutive issues of shares/ stock options - -
Number of shares considered as weighted average shares and
potential shares outstanding 2,903,890 2,903,890

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

 March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Net Profit available as per Profit and Loss account available to
Equity shareholder (Rs in Lakhs) 211.44 93.23
Face value per equity share (Rupees) 10.00 10.00
Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS computation (nos) 2,903,890 2,903,890
Basic and Diluted earning per share (Rs) 7.28 3.21
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29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018   March 31, 2017  April  01, 2016

Income tax Demands for A.Y 10-11 to A.Y. 13-14 amounting to Rs 49.93 Lakhs
(previous year Rs 178.70 Lakhs) has been disputed by the company before CIT
(Appeals)/Income Tax Tribunal. The management doesn’t expect any liability
crystallizing in these cases. - - 49.93

Against the demand of property taxes raised by Municipal Corporation of Greater
Mumbai (BMC) for the period 1st April 2000 to 31st March 2018, Company
succeded in its appeal in the court of Small Causes. BMC filled an appeal against
the order of Court of Small Causes which is pending in Bombay High Court.
Subsequently BMC changed the method of compuation of property taxes from
Financial Year 2010-11 onwards to “Capital based system” and raised new bills
amounting to Rs 134.83 Lakhs for the period and has also taken further action.
The company has challanged the same and has filed a writ petition in the Bombay
High Court and has obtained interim stay in its favour. Based on the legal advice
the Manegement believes that the outcome of this proceeding will be in companies
favor and will not adversely impact the company’s financial position. 289.02 284.97 279.91

The company has disputed increased lease rent amounting to Rs 147.56 Lakhs
(Previous year Rs 137.13 Lakhs) till the end of the year demanded by Bombay
Port Trust Authorities and has filed a case in City Civil Court, Mumbai which is
pending for decision. The company has been legally advised that it has good case
on merit and is hopeful that the demand will not sustain. 147.56 137.13 128.13

30 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:-

A Description of Companies:

Name of the Related Party Nature of Relationship
Walchand & Company. Pvt. Ltd. Holding Company
Walchand Netsoft Pvt Ltd Controlled Company
Walchand Diamond Jubilee Trust Directors as Trustee

B Key Management Personnel:

Name of the Related Party Nature of Relationship
Mrs. Pallavi Jha Chairperson & Managing Director
Mr. Sanjay Jha Whole Time Director
Ms Shruthi Patni Chief Financial Officer

C Relative of Key Management Personnel:

Name of the Related Party Nature of Relationship
Mrs. Kamalini Bahubali Mother of Chairperson & Managing Director
Ms. Maithili Jha Daughter of Chairperson & Managing Director
Ms. Anuja Joshi Sister of Chairperson
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Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

A. Transaction with companies
(i) Dividend paid

Walchand & Company Private Limited -  19.85 15.44
Walchand Diamond Jubilee Trust - 1.87 1.50

(ii) Deposit accepted
Walchand & Company Private Limited 1.00 - -

(iii)Deposit repaid
Walchand & Company Private Limited 1.00  -  -

(iv) Income from property
Walchand & Company Private Limited 0.51  0.51 0.51

B. Transactions with Key Management Personnel
(i) Remuneration paid

Managing Director’s Remuneration 113.07 93.49 95.23
Whole time Director’s Remuneration 106.53 87.87 96.17
Chief Financial Officer Remuneration 43.65 39.01 31.89

C. Transactions with relatives of Key Management Personnel
(i) Remuneration paid

Ms. Maithili Jha 9.84 8.05 6.67
(ii) Dividend paid

Mrs. Kamalini Bahubali - 0.07 0.05
Ms. Anuja Joshi - 0.02 0.02
Chairperson and Managing Director - 0.02 0.02

Managerial remuneration

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Chairperson and Managing Director
Salary 49.28 45.61 40.10
Performance Pay 24.78 11.53 23.39
Contribution to Provident Fund 5.91 5.47 4.81
Contribution to Superannuation Fund 7.39 6.84 6.01
Gratuity 2.37 2.19 1.93
Perquisites 23.34 21.85 18.99
Total 113.07 93.49 95.23
Whole- Time Director
Salary 47.23 43.71 38.42
Performance Pay 23.75 11.05 28.82
Contribution to Provident Fund 5.67 5.24 4.61
Contribution to Superannuation Fund 7.08 6.56 5.76
Gratuity 2.27 2.10 1.85
Perquisites 20.53 19.21 16.71
Total 106.53 87.87 96.17

During the year ended 31st March 2018 the Board of Directors recommended equity dividend of Rs. Nil (For the year ended 31st
March 2017  Rs. Nil) and For the year ended 31st March 2016 Rs. 1.25 per equity share. This includes dividend on equity shares
held by the holding company. For details of shares held by the holding company, please refer note no 15

31 Employee benefit disclosure
The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:
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(i) Defined Contribution plans
The amounts recognized as expense :-

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Contribution to Provident Fund 35.92 36.42 30.64
Contribution to Superannuation Fund 14.48 13.40 11.78

(ii) Defined Benefit plan - Gratuity:
The following table summarizes the components of expense related to defined benefit plan recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the funded status and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet for the plan.

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

A) Change in defined benefit obligation
Ai) Opening defined benefit obligation 81.11 55.19 49.10
Aii) Current service cost 10.03 8.22 7.07
Aiii) Past service cost 19.99 - -
Aiv) Interest cost 5.69 4.54 3.94
Av) Sub total (Included in Statement of Profit & Loss) 35.71 12.76 11.01
Avi) Actuarial (gain)/ Losses on Obligation (1.49) 17.71 (1.63)
Avii) Sub total (Included in Other Comprehensive Income) (1.49) 17.71 (1.63)
Aviii) Benefits paid (14.62) (4.55) (3.30)
Aix) Closing defined benefit obligation 100.71 81.11 55.19

B) Change in fair value of assets
Bi) Opening fair value of plan assets 52.61 43.50 41.15
Bii) Expected return on plan assets 3.69 3.58 3.30
Biii) Sub total (Included in Statement of Profit & Loss) 3.69 3.58 3.30
Biv) Actuarial gain/(losses)  on plan assets (3.19) 0.42 (2.17)
Bv) Sub total (Included in Other Comprehensive Income) (3.19) 0.42 (2.17)
Bvi) Benefits paid (14.62) (4.55) (3.30)
Bvii) Contributions by employer 1.12 9.66  4.50
Bviii)Closing fair value of plan assets 39.61 52.61 43.50

C) Expenses recognised in
Statement of Profit & Loss 32.02 9.18 7.07
Other Comprehensive Income 1.70 17.29 0.64
Past service cost
Expected return on plan assets - - -
Net Actuarial (gain) /Losses recognized - - 0.53
Total expense recognized 33.72 26.47 8.25

D) Amount recognised in Balance sheet
Present value of Funded obligations 100.72 81.11 55.19
Fair value of plan assets (39.62) (52.61) (43.50)
Net Liability/ (Asset) 61.10 28.50 11.69

E) Actuarial assumptions
Discount Rate (p.a) 7.35% 7.02% 8.23%
Expected rate of return on assets (p.a) 7.35% 7.02% 8.23%
Salary Escalation rate (p.a) 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

F) Experience Adjustments:
Experience adjustment on plan liability- (Gains) / Losses (0.71) 14.95 (0.80)
Experience adjustment on plan assets- Gains / (Losses) - 0.42  (2.17)
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32 CATEGORY-WISE CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Particulars Refer Non-current Current
Note 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2016 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2016no.

Financial Assets measured at Fair
value through Profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investment in Equity shares
(Net of provision)* 6 - -               -
Investment in shares of immovable
property (Net of provision)* 6 -               -               -

-               -               - -               -              -
Financial Assets measured at
Fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) -               -               - -               - -

 -               -               - - - -
Financial Assets measured at
amortised cost
Electricity deposit 7             7.06 6.96 6.96
Rent deposit paid 7 19.51 21.17 22.78
Other deposits 7 15.17 15.17 14.92
Security Deposits (Net of provision) ** 7 -               - -
Bank Fixed deposits 7 6.00
Trade receivables 10 1,044.55 419.27 548.22
Cash and  cash equivalents 11 50.33 27.16 26.99
Other balances with banks 12 559.20 650.49 422.36
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit 13 19.19 26.85 22.16
Others 13 0.52 0.00 20.00

41.74 49.30 44.66 1,673.79 1,123.77 1,039.73
Financial Liabilities measured at
amortised cost
Deposit received from tenant 17 27.43 25.07 22.92
Trade payables 19 127.07 80.38 70.12
Unpaid Dividends 20 6.83 6.76 4.46
Payable towards expenses 20 287.20 182.06 236.90

27.43 25.07 22.92 421.10 269.20 311.48

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS Fair Value hierarchy

Fair Value Quoted price Significant Significant
as at in active observable unobservable

31.03.2018    markets inputs inputs
Financial Assets / financial liabilities (Level 1)     (Level 2)     (Level 3)

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss* - -
Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI) NA NA NA NA
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS Fair Value hierarchy

Fair Value Quoted price Significant Significant
as at in active observable unobservable

31.03.2017    markets inputs inputs
Financial Assets / financial liabilities (Level 1)     (Level 2)     (Level 3)

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss* - -

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI) NA NA NA NA

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS Fair Value hierarchy

Fair Value Quoted price Significant Significant
as at in active observable unobservable

01.04.2016    markets inputs inputs
Financial Assets / financial liabilities (Level 1)     (Level 2)     (Level 3)

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss* - -
Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI) NA NA NA NA

* 100% provision made against Investment in Equity shares of Bombay Mercantile Co-op Bank Ltd. Rs. 0.05 Lakhs
and Investment in shares of Walchand Co. op. housing society Rs. 0.0025 Lakhs. Hence closing value is NIL.

** 100% provision made against Security deposit of Rs. 2.24 Lakhs. Hence closing value is NIL.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
1 Market risk

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies.
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change
in the price of a financial instrument.
a Interest rate risk :

The company has investment in fixed deposits. However interest income from fixed deposits is a residuary
income and will not affect the significant cash flow of the company.

b Foreign currency risk:
Company has nominal amount of foreign currency exposure, hence it will not impact cash flow of the company.

2 Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed.
To manage this, the Company periodically assesses financial reliability of customers and other counter parties,
taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and
ageing of financial assets. Individual risk limits are set and periodically reviewed on the basis of such information.

Financial assests are written off when there is no reasonable expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing
to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company
continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are
made, these are recognized as income in the statement of profit and loss.The Company measures the expected
credit loss of trade receivables and loan from individual customers based on historical trend, industry practices
and the business environment in which the entity operates.Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience
and past trends. Based on the historical data, loss on collection of receivable is not material hence no additional
provision considered.
Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no significant increase in credit risk.
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Movement in provisions of doubtful debts

Particulars                  As at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017

Opening provision 13.98           18.82
Add : Additional provision made 11.08             0.65

Less : Provision write off (3.32)                -
Less : Provision reversed - (5.49)

Closing provisions 21.74 13.98

3 Liquidity risk :
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Maturity patterns of Financial Liabilities

Particulars Less than Between More than Total
1 year   1 to 5 years   5 years

At 31st March, 2018
Trade payables 127.07 -  - 127.07
Other financial liabilities (Current and non current) 321.46 - - 321.46

At 31st March, 2017
Trade payables 80.38 - - 80.38
Other financial liabilities (Current and non current) 188.82 25.07 - 213.89

At 1st April 2016
Trade payables 70.12 - - 70.12
Other financial liabilities (Current and non current) 241.36 22.92 - 264.28
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33 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS
For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Company had prepared its financial
statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (‘Previous GAAP’). This note explains the
principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared under Previous
GAAP for the following

a) Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2016 (Transition date);
b) Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017; and

c) Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Exemptions availed
Ind AS 101- First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, allows first-time adopters, exemptions from the
retrospective application and exemption from application of certain requirements of other Ind AS. The Company
has availed the following exemptions as per Ind AS 101:

Optional exemptions availed
i) Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets :

The Company has elected to consider the carrying value of all its items of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets recognised in the financial statements prepared under Previous GAAP and use the same as
deemed cost in the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet.

Ind AS Mandatory exceptions :
i) Classification and measurement of financial assets:

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the
facts and circumstances that exist as on the date of transition to Ind AS. Accordingly Company has classified
and measured all its financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist as on the date of
transition to Ind AS.

ii) Estimates :
An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS as on the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent
with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous IGAAP (after adjustments to reflect any
difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.Ind
AS estimates as at 1 April 2016 are consistent with the estimates as on the same date made in conformity
with previous GAAP.
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Reconciliation of balance sheet as at 1st April 2016
Rs. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Footnote  As at As at As at
No. April 1, 2016  April 1, 2016 April 1, 2016

 IGAAP Effect of Transition Ind AS
I. ASSETS to Ind AS

(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, plant and equipments                   234.40                           -                   234.40
(b) Capital work - in - progress                       0.91                           -                       0.91
(c) Investment properties                     13.06                           -                     13.06
(d) Other Intangible assets                       8.66                           -                       8.66
(e) Intangible assets under development                     15.38                           -                     15.38
(f) Investments in gold                       3.75                           -                       3.75
(g) Financial assets

(i) Investments                           -                           -                           -
(ii) Other financial assets B                     47.85 (3.20) 44.66

(h) Deferred tax assets (net)                     13.58                           -                     13.58
(i) Current tax assets (net)                   436.08                           - 436.07

773.66                    (3.20) 770.47
(2) Current Assets

(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables                   548.22                           -                   548.22
(ii) Cash and  cash equivalents                     26.99                           -                     26.99
(iii) Other balances with banks                   422.36                           -                   422.36
(iv) Other financial assets                     42.16                           -                     42.16

(b) Other current assets B                     36.17                       3.18                     39.35

1,075.90 3.18 1,079.08

TOTAL 1,849.56  (0.02) 1,849.54

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital 290.39 - 290.39
(b) Other Equity A,B,C                1,065.85 44.22 1,110.06

1,356.24 44.22 1,400.45

(2) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Other financial liabilities C                     30.00                     (7.08)                     22.92

30.00 (7.08) 22.92

(3) CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables                     70.12                           -                     70.12
(ii) Other financial liabilities                   241.36                           -                   241.36

(b) Other current liabilities C                     62.69                       6.53                     69.23
(c) Provisions A                     89.15 (43.69) 45.46

463.31 (37.16) 426.17

TOTAL 1,849.56 (0.02) 1,849.54
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Reconciliation of balance sheet as at 31st March 2017
Rs. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Footnote  As at As at As at
No. March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017

IGAAP Effect of Transition Ind AS
to Ind AS

I. ASSETS
(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Property, plant and equipments 219.40 - 219.40
(b) Capital work - in - progress - -                              -
(c) Investment properties 12.24                          -                        12.24
(d) Other Intangible assets 37.56 -                        37.56
(e) Intangible assets under development -                          - -
(f) Investments in gold 4.72 - 4.72
(g) Financial assets

(i) Investments - - -
(ii) Other financial assets B 57.51 (8.21) 49.30

(h) Deferred tax assets (net) 30.79 - 30.79
(i) Current tax assets (net) 342.80 - 342.81

705.02 (8.21) 696.81
(2) Current Assets

(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 419.27                          -                      419.27
(ii) Cash and  cash equivalents 27.16                          -                        27.16
(iii) Other balances with banks 650.49                          -                      650.49
(iv) Other financial assets 26.85                          -                        26.85

(b) Other current assets B 54.91                      8.07                        62.98
1,178.67 8.07 1,186.74

TOTAL 1,883.68 (0.14) 1,883.54

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital 290.39 -                      290.39
(b) Other Equity B,C 1,147.60                      0.43                   1,148.04

1,437.99 0.43 1,438.42

(2) NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Other financial liabilities C 30.00 (4.93) 25.07

30.00 (4.93) 25.07

(3) CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables 80.38 - 80.38
(ii) Other financial liabilities 188.82 - 188.82

(b) Other current liabilities C 66.93 4.35 71.28
(c) Provisions 79.56 - 79.56

415.70 4.35 420.05

TOTAL 1,883.68 (0.14) 1,883.54
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Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2017
Rs. in Lakhs

PARTICULARS Footnote  For the year For the year For the year
No. Ended Ended Ended

March 31, 2017  March 31, 2017  March 31, 2017

 IGAAP Effect of Transition Ind AS
to Ind AS

Revenue
Revenue from Operations 2,324.03 - 2,324.03
Other income B,C 169.84 2.88 172.72

Total Revenue 2,493.87 2.88 2,496.75

Expenses
Employee benefit expenses D 1,357.10 (17.29) 1,339.80
Royalty and related expenses 283.99 - 283.99
Training expenses 167.08 - 167.08
Travel, lodging and conveyance expenses 138.70 - 138.70
Rent and maintenance expense B 62.14 0.83 62.97
Marketing expenses 76.42 - 76.42
Legal, Professional and Recruitment expenses 61.12 - 61.12
Finance Cost C 0.02 2.15 2.17
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 49.14 - 49.14
Other Expenses 185.83 - 185.83
Total Expenses 2,381.54 (14.32) 2,367.22

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 112.34 17.20 129.53

Tax Expenses
Current Tax 42.50 5.72 48.22
Income tax earlier years 6.35 - 6.35
Deferred tax (18.27) - (18.27)

PROFIT AFTER TAX (A) 81.76 11.48 93.23

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans D (17.29) (17.29)
Income tax relating to above items D 5.72 5.72

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR (B) - (11.58) (11.58)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR (A+B) 81.76 (0.09) 81.65
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Reconciliation of Equity
 Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars Foot-Note no.  As at 31.03.2017  As at 01.04.2016

Equity as per previous GAAP            1,437.99             1,356.24
Adjustment of Proposed dividend and
dividend distribution tax A                         -                    43.69
Others B,C                     0.43                      0.53

Equity as per Ind AS            1,438.42             1,400.46

Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st March, 2017
 Rs. In Lakhs

Particulars Foot-Note no.  For the year
ended 31.03.2017

Net Profit as per previous GAAP                   81.76
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan  D                    17.29
Others  B,C,D                    (5.81)

Profit after tax as per Ind AS                   93.24
Other Comprehensive income (Net of tax)  D                  (11.58)

Total Comprehensive as per Ind AS                   81.66

Footnotes :
A Proposed dividend

In the financial statements prepared under Previous GAAP, dividend on equity shares recommended by the
Board of Directors after the end of reporting period but before the financial statements were approved for issue,
was recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the reporting period relating to which dividend was
proposed. Under Ind AS, such dividend is recognised in the reporting period in which the same is approved by
the members in a general meeting.On the date of transition, the above change in accounting treatment of
proposed dividend has resulted in increase in Equity with a corresponding decrease in Provisions by Rs. 43.69 lakhs

B Rent deposit given
Under the previous GAAP, Rent deposits given were recorded at their transaction value. Under Ind AS, all
financial assets are required to be valued at fair value. Difference between fair value of rent deposits and the
carrying value (transaction value) as per Previous GAAP has been recognised as prepaid rent.Consequently, the
amount of rent deposits given has been decreased by Rs. 3.20 Lakhs, prepaid rent increased by Rs. 3.18 Lakhs
and Total Equity decreased by Rs. 0.02 Lakhs as at 1st April, 2016.The amount of rent deposits has been
decreased by Rs. 8.21 Lakhs, prepaid rent increased by Rs. 8.07 Lakhs and Total Equity decreased by Rs. 0.14 Lakhs
as at 31st March, 2017.Profit for the year ended 31st March 2017 and total equity as at 31st March 2017 decreased
by Rs. 0.12 Lakhs (Net) Due to amortization of prepaid lease rent of Rs. 0.83 Lakhs and is partially off-set by the
notional interest income on lease deposit of Rs. 0.71 Lakhs.

C Rent deposits received from tenant :
Under the previous GAAP, Rent deposits taken were recorded at their transaction value. Under Ind AS, all
financial liabilities are required to be valued at fair value. Difference between fair value of rent deposits and the
carrying value (transaction value) as per Previous GAAP has been recognised as Lease income received in
advance.Consequently, the amount of rent deposits received from tenant has been decreased by Rs. 7.08 Lakhs,
Lease income received in advance increased by Rs. 6.53 Lakhs and Total Equity increased by Rs. 0.55 Lakhs as
at 1st April, 2016.The amount of rent deposits has been decreased by Rs. 4.93 Lakhs and Lease income received
in advance increased by Rs. 4.35 Lakhs and Total Equity increased by Rs. 0.58 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2017.Profit
for the year ended 31st March 2017 and total equity as at 31st March 2017 increased by Rs. 0.03 Lakhs (Net) Due
to amortization of Lease income received in advance of Rs. 2.18 Lakhs and is paritally off-set by the notional
interest expense on rent deposits taken of Rs. 2.15 Lakhs.
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D Remeasurement of defined benefit plans :
In the financial statements prepared under Previous GAAP, remeasurement benefit of defined plans (gratuity),
arising primarily due to change in actuarial assumptions was recognised as employee benefits expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind AS, such remeasurement benefits relating to defined benefit plans is
recognised in OCI as per the requirements of Ind AS 19- Employee benefits. Consequently, the related tax effect
of the same has also been recognised in OCI.For the year ended 31st March, 2017, remeasurement of gratuity
liability resulted in a net benefit of Rs. 17.29 Lakhs which has now been removed from employee benefits
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss and recognised separately in OCI. Consequently, tax effect of the
same amounting to Rs. 5.72 Lakhs is also recognised separately in OCI.The above changes do not affect Equity
as at date of transition to Ind AS and as at 31st March, 2017. However, Profit before tax and profit for the year
ended 31st March, 2017 Increased by Rs. 17.29 Lakhs and  Rs. 11.58 Lakhs respectively.

As per our attached report of the even date For and on behalf of the board of directors

For K. S. AIYAR & CO. PALLAVI JHA Chairperson and Managing Director
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 100186W SANJAY JHA Whole Time Director

Satish Kelkar SHRUTHI PATNI Chief Financial Officer
Partner
Membership No. 38934

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 2, 2018
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Registered Office : 1, Construction House, 5, Walchand Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai - 400 001.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Registered Folio :

DP ID :

Client ID :

Name :

Address of Shareholder :

No. of Shares held :

I/We hereby record my/our presence at 98th Annual General Meeting of the Company at the Kilachand Conference Room, Indian
Merchants Chamber, IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai - 400020 on Tuesday 31st July, 2018.
Signature of Shareholder / Proxy Present …………………………..
Note:
1. You are requested to sign and hand this over at the entrance.
2. If you are attending the meeting in person or by proxy please bring copy of notice and annual report for reference at the meeting.

 CUT HERE

Form No. MGT 11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: L65993MH1920PLC000791
Name of the Company: WALCHAND PEOPLEFIRST LIMITED
Registered office: 1, Construction House, 5 Walchand Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai- 400001

Name of the Member(s) :

Registered address:

E-mail Id :

Folio No/Client ID:

DP ID:

I/We being the member(s) of …………. shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint

Sr. No. Name Address E-mail Id Signature

1

2

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 98th Annual General Meeting of the Company,
to be held on the Tuesday 31st July, 2018 at Kilachand Conference Room, Indian Merchants’ Chamber, IMC Marg, Churchgate,
Mumbai-400020 at 03:00 P.M. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below :

Resolution No.

1………………………………….

2…………………………………

3………………………………….

4…………………………………

Signed this     …… day of     ……… 20 ….

Signature of shareholder …………………………………………………………..

Signature of Proxy holder(s)……………………………………………

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.



WALCHAND PEOPLEFIRST LIMITED
Registered office : 1, Construction House, 5, Walchand Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai - 400 001.
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Route Map for the venue of the Annual General meeting :


